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1      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.     

2 We're going to go back on the record in Docket 13-0657, 

3 Commonwealth Edison Company's Application for a         

4 Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity.        

5            Ma'am, would you state your name, please?    

6      MS. McNEELY:  Andrea McNeely.                      

7      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  And could you  

8 spell that name for the court reporter, last name?      

9      MS. McNEELY:  Yes.  M C, capital N, E E L Y, first 

10 name Andrea, A N D R E A.                               

11      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  And you're     

12 here on behalf of Intervenor Hubbard; is that correct?  

13      MS. McNEELY:  That is correct.                     

14      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  And Intervenor 

15 Hubbard has previously filed expert testimony by --     

16      MS. McNEELY:  By Jack Pizzo.                       

17      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  How do you     

18 spell that name?                                        

19      MS. McNEELY:  P I Z Z O.                           

20      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  And     

21 you're here today to present an affidavit?              

22      MS. McNEELY:  His affidavit and his supporting     

23 testimony.                                              

24      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.     

25 Which is the same testimony that's already been filed   
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1 on e-Docket?                                            

2      MS. McNEELY:  Yes, that's correct.                 

3      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.     

4 Would it be possible for Ms. Hubbard to file that       

5 affidavit on e-Docket?                                  

6      MS. McNEELY:  She can at a later date.  She's not  

7 in Illinois at present.                                 

8      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  At the moment, 

9 huh?                                                    

10      MS. McNEELY:  But if you need her to submit an     

11 affidavit, I can contact her and ask her to submit it.  

12      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  How many       

13 copies of the affidavit do you have with you?           

14      MS. McNEELY:  I just have the one.                 

15      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Let me  

16 take a look at it.                                      

17                     (Brief pause.)                      

18      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  The affidavit  

19 consists of one page and three short numbered           

20 paragraphs.  We'll call --                              

21      MS. McNEELY:  Do you need Ms. Hubbard to submit an 

22 affidavit?                                              

23      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  No, that's     

24 okay.                                                   

25            (Continuing.) -- this affidavit in support   
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1 of Jack Pizzo's previously filed testimony.  We'll make 

2 three copies and present it to the Clerk and admit the  

3 testimony and the affidavit into the record.            

4      MS. McNEELY:  All right.  Thank you.               

5      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  You're         

6 welcome.  Thank you.                                    

7            All right.  We talked yesterday about        

8 admitting other evidence by affidavit.  I think this    

9 would be a good time for that in case somebody doesn't  

10 want to spend the day with us.                          

11            How about you, Mr. Brady?                    

12      MR. BRADY:   Sean Brady with Wind on the Wires.    

13            I went ahead and filed my affidavit this     

14 morning on e-Docket.                                    

15      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  And you move   

16 for the admission of what?                              

17      MR. BRADY:   I move for the admission of           

18 affidavit, our -- it's Wind on the Wires Exhibit No. 3  

19 which is the affidavit of Michael Goggin stating that   

20 his testimony that was filed as Exhibits 1 and --       

21 Exhibit 1 through 1.5 and Exhibit 2.0 are true and      

22 correct; and I have no changes.  So I move for the      

23 admission of that exhibit.                              

24      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Objections?    

25                     (No response.)                      
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1      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  There are no   

2 objections.  The exhibit and attachments will be        

3 admitted into the record.                               

4            Anybody else?                                

5      MR. RIPPIE:   Your Honor, earlier today,           

6 Commonwealth Edison caused to be filed on e-Docket      

7 affidavits of the following witnesses:  Ms. Laurie      

8 Oppel, authenticating ComEd Exhibit 4.0, 4.01, and      

9 4.02, Public and Confidential, and ComEd Exhibit 13.0,  

10 13.1, and 13.2; Mr. Kevin Garrido, G A R R I D O,       

11 authenticating ComEd Exhibit 8, 8.01, 8.02, 8.03, and   

12 17.0; the Honorable Nora Mead Brownell, authenticating  

13 ComEd Exhibits 10.0 and 10.01; Commissioner Sherman     

14 Elliott, authenticating Exhibit 11.0 and 22.0,          

15 corrected; Dr. Roy Shanker, authenticating Exhibit 12.0 

16 and 12.01; and Mr. Richard Roddewig, R O D D E W I G,   

17 authenticating Exhibits 19.0 through 19.03 and 28.0;    

18 and lastly, Ms. Julie Solomon, S O L O M O N,           

19 authenticating ComEd Exhibits 23.0 corrected and 23.01. 

20 And we would offer those pieces of testimony together   

21 with their attached exhibits into evidence.             

22      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Objections?    

23                     (No response.)                      

24      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  There are no   

25 objections.  The exhibits will be -- Exhibits and       
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1 attachment affidavits will be admitted into the record. 

2 I would request to facilitate our report to the clerk   

3 that you give us a copy of all those numbers so that we 

4 can compare with our notes.                             

5      MR. RIPPIE:   Certainly.  May we have leave to     

6 send that to your Honors tomorrow?                      

7      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Yes, tonight,  

8 whatever.                                               

9      MR. RIPPIE:   Okay.                                

10      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Thanks.        

11            Anybody else?                                

12      MR. SHAY:  Your Honor, for Intervenor Utility Risk 

13 Management Corporation, there are two witnesses,        

14 neither of which were required to appear, Ed Nucell     

15 (phonetic,) unfortunately, he's traveling out of the    

16 country and I have assurance from him -- or we'll have  

17 that -- he'll be back and I will that from him executed 

18 by the 23rd, so if we could have the record held open   

19 just for that limited purpose --                        

20      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  We'll call it  

21 a late filed exhibit and we'll give it till the 23rd.   

22 If that ends up not being quite enough, let us know.    

23      MR. SHAY:  And then the other URMC witness,        

24 Dr. Richard Cavers (phonetic), I received his morning;  

25 I have not had a chance to file it on e-Docket.         
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1      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Make that a    

2 late filed exhibit, too.  What are the exhibit numbers  

3 that they're sporting.                                  

4      MR. SHAY:  Dr. -- I mean, Ed Nucell is URMC        

5 Exhibit 1.0 and Dr. Cavers is URMC Exhibit 2.0, and     

6 their resumes are attached with their testimony, not    

7 separate exhibit.                                       

8      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.          

9      MR. SHAY:  And we have a few land owners that      

10 Mr. Phillips will cover here.                           

11      MR. PHILLIPS:  Your Honor, as well, we have        

12 several land-owner witnesses that no one chose to       

13 cross-examine which include Mr. William Lynchchild      

14 (phonetic), Jerry Drexler, Thomas Pienkowski,           

15 P I E N K O W S K I, John Tomasiewicz,                  

16 T O M A S I E W I C Z, Ellen Roberts Vogel, and --      

17      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  How do you     

18 spell Vogel?                                            

19      MR. PHILLIPS:  V O G E L.  (Continuing.) -- and    

20 Robert Mason, M A S O N.  All their affidavits are out. 

21 I expect to have them all executed by Monday, and we    

22 will, with leave, have those all filed as late filed    

23 exhibits to authenticate their direct testimony and I   

24 believe one rebuttal testimony and one cross-rebuttal   

25 testimony.                                              
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1      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Just    

2 try to -- make sure you cover in the affidavit the      

3 rebuttal and whatever --                                

4      MR. PHILLIPS:  You understood, your Honor.  We'll  

5 have all exhibit numbers and dates of filling on the    

6 list.                                                   

7      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Do you  

8 want to give me the day again?                          

9      MR. PHILLIPS:  The 23rd, your Honor.               

10      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.     

11 Any objections?                                         

12                     (No response.)                      

13      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  There are no   

14 objections.  They will be admitted into the record upon 

15 receipt of the affidavits in support thereof.           

16            Anything else?                               

17                     (No response.)                      

18      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Let's move on. 

19 Let's commence with the cross-examination of            

20 Mr. Zuraski.  Is that right?                            

21      MS. ERICSON:  Yes.  Thank you, your Honor.         

22      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Are the ComEd  

23 witnesses here in the room?                             

24      MR. BERNET:  Yes, your Honor.                      

25      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Mr. Zuraski,   
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1 and anyone else who is scheduled to testify today,      

2 please raise your hand to be sworn.                     

3                     (Witnesses sworn.)                  

4      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  I guess Staff  

5 is going to.                                            

6      MS. ERICSON:  Thank you, your Honor.               

7            For the record, my name is Christine         

8 Ericson, counsel for Commission Staff.                  

9 WHEREUPON:                                              

10                   RICHARD J. ZURASKI,                   

11 called as a witness herein, having been first duly      

12 sworn, was examined and testified as follows:           

13                    DIRECT EXAMINATION                   

14 BY MS. ERICSON:                                         

15      Q.    Good afternoon, Mr. Zuraski.                 

16      A.    Good afternoon.                              

17      Q.    Please state your full name for the record   

18 and spell your last name.                               

19      A.    Richard J. Zuraski, Z U R A S K I.           

20      Q.    Who is your employer and what is your        

21 business address?                                       

22      A.    Illinois Commerce Commission, 527 East       

23 Capitol Avenue, Springfield, Illinois 62701.            

24      Q.    And what is your position at the Illinois    

25 Commerce Commission?                                    
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1      A.    I'm an economist in the policy division of   

2 the Public Utilities Bureau.                            

3      Q.    Did you prepare any exhibits for submittal   

4 in this proceeding?                                     

5      A.    Yes.                                         

6      Q.    Do you have before you a document which has  

7 been marked for identification as Staff Exhibit 1.0,    

8 which consist a cover page and 31 pages of narrative    

9 testimony, and is titled Direct Testimony of Richard J. 

10 Zuraski, Economist, Policy Division, Illinois Commerce  

11 Commission, filed on e-Docket on February 14, 2014?     

12      A.    Yes, I do.                                   

13      Q.    Did you prepare that document for            

14 presentation in this matter?                            

15      A.    Yes.                                         

16      Q.    Do you have before you a document which has  

17 been marked for identification as Staff Exhibit 1.1     

18 which consists of a cover page and a seven-page PJM     

19 document entitled Transmission Expansion Advisory       

20 Committee Meeting, 2010 Market Efficiency Analysis      

21 Update, dated February 3, 2011, filed on e-Docket on    

22 February 14, 2014?                                      

23      A.    Yes, I do.                                   

24      Q.    Did you prepare that exhibit for             

25 presentation in this matter?                            
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1      A.    Yes.                                         

2      Q.    Do you also have before you a document which 

3 has been marked for identification as Staff             

4 Exhibit 1.2, which consists a cover page and a 12-page  

5 PJM document entitled Transmission Expansion Advisory   

6 Committee Meeting, 2011 Market Efficiency Analysis      

7 Update, dated November 3, 2011, and filed on e-Docket   

8 on February 14, 2014?                                   

9      A.    Yes.                                         

10      Q.    Did you prepare that exhibit for             

11 presentation in this matter?                            

12      A.    Yes.                                         

13      Q.    Do you have before you a document which has  

14 been marked for identification as Staff Exhibit 1.3,    

15 which consists a cover page and Commonwealth Edison     

16 Company's response to Staff's Data Request RJZ2.02,     

17 including a two-page Attachment 1 filed on e-Docket on  

18 February 14, 2014?                                      

19      A.    Yes.                                         

20      Q.    Did you prepare that exhibit for             

21 presentation in this matter?                            

22      A.    Yes.                                         

23      Q.    Do you have before you a document which has  

24 been marked for identification as Staff Exhibit 1.4,    

25 which consists a cover page and two pages containing    
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1 Commonwealth Edison Company's Response to Staff Data    

2 Request RJZ2.06?                                        

3      A.    Yes.                                         

4      Q.    Did you prepare that exhibit for             

5 presentation in this matter?                            

6      A.    Yes.                                         

7      Q.    Do you have before you a document which has  

8 been marked for identification as Staff Exhibit 4.0,    

9 which consists a cover page and 32 pages of narrative   

10 rebuttal testimony and is titled Rebuttal Testimony of  

11 Richard J. Zuraski, Economist, Policy Division,         

12 Illinois Commerce Commission, filed April 3, 2014?      

13      A.    Yes.                                         

14      Q.    Did you prepare that document for            

15 presentation in this matter?                            

16      A.    Yes.                                         

17      Q.    Okay.  Do you have before you a document     

18 which has been marked for identification as Staff       

19 Exhibit 4.2, which consists a cover page and five pages 

20 of ComEd Responses to Staff Data Request RJZ1.01        

21 through 1.05 inclusive, filed on e-Docket on April 3,   

22 2014?                                                   

23      A.    Yes.                                         

24      Q.    Did you prepare that exhibit for             

25 presentation in this matter?                            
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1      A.    Yes.                                         

2      Q.    Now, you had also filed on April 3, 2014, a  

3 document marked Exhibit 4.1; is that correct?           

4      A.    Yes.                                         

5      Q.    And that document inadvertently contained a  

6 duplicate, however; so you're intentionally omitting it 

7 from the record here; is that right?                    

8      A.    Correct.                                     

9      Q.    Do you have any corrections to make to any   

10 of your other exhibits?                                 

11      A.    No.                                          

12      Q.    Did you say no?                              

13      A.    I'm sorry.  Yes, I did.  No.                 

14      Q.    And what would those be?                     

15      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  He said he has 

16 no corrections.                                         

17 BY MS. ERICSON:                                         

18      Q.    I'm sorry.  I thought you said yes.  Sorry.  

19            Okay.  One moment, please.                   

20                     (Brief pause.)                      

21 BY MS. ERICSON:                                         

22      Q.    Just for clarification, Mr. Zuraski, in your 

23 rebuttal testimony marked as Staff Exhibit 4 at         

24 Line 398 on page 18, where it says "attached as," did   

25 you want to strike that and change 4.1 to 1.3 so that   
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1 the language in parentheses would read:  ComEd Response 

2 to Staff DR RJZ2.02, comma, Staff Exhibit 1.03?         

3      A.    Yes -- excuse me -- that is correct.         

4      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.                            

5            And do you have any other corrections to     

6 make to your exhibits?                                  

7      A.    Not to my knowledge.                         

8      Q.    So subject to the correction that you just   

9 made today, is the information contained in your        

10 exhibits true and correct to the best of your           

11 knowledge?                                              

12      A.    Yes.                                         

13      Q.    If I were to ask you the same questions as   

14 set forth in these exhibits, would with the correction  

15 noted, would your responses be the same today?          

16      A.    Yes.                                         

17      MS. ERICSON:  Your Honor, I move for admission     

18 into evidence Staff Exhibits 1.0, 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4,   

19 4.0, and 4.2, noting that Exhibit 4.1 is being          

20 intentionally admitted.                                 

21      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Objections?    

22                     (No response.)                      

23      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  There are no   

24 objections.  Staff Exhibit 1.0 through 1.4 and 4.0 and  

25 4.2 already admitted in to the record.                  
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1      MS. ERICSON:  Thank you, your Honor.  Mr. Zuraski  

2 is now available for cross-examination.                 

3      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  How many       

4 examiners do we have?  Two.                             

5            Who's going first?                           

6      MR. SHAY:  I will, your Honor.  Thank you.         

7      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.     

8                    CROSS-EXAMINATION                    

9 BY MR. SHAY:                                            

10      Q.    Good afternoon, Mr. Zuraski.                 

11      A.    Hello.                                       

12      Q.    My name is Bill Shay.  I think we            

13 participated in a recent prior proceeding together.     

14 I'm representing -- For purposes of cross-examination   

15 of you today, I'm representing Intervenor URMC.         

16            Mr. Zuraski, is it correct that you've been  

17 employed by the Commerce Commission for, it looks like, 

18 about 27 years?                                         

19      A.    Are you sure it's that long?                 

20      Q.    I'm afraid so, if your testimony is correct. 

21      A.    I know it's over 20 years.  So that's about  

22 correct, yes.                                           

23      Q.    And I believe that you stated presently      

24 you're in the policy division?                          

25      A.    Correct.                                     
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1      Q.    But from your testimony, it looks like you   

2 previously served in the energy division and then       

3 before that, the office of policy and planning; is that 

4 correct?                                                

5      A.    Yes, it is.                                  

6      Q.    Mr. Zuraski, is it true that by definition,  

7 all new transmission assets enhance the connectivity of 

8 the grid?                                               

9      A.    If not by definition, it would at least -- I 

10 think for all practical purposes, it would be that way. 

11 There would be no transmission project being proposed   

12 that does not have that type of effect.                 

13      Q.    If it's networked anyway, correct?           

14      A.    Yes.                                         

15      Q.    Thank you.                                   

16            Now, when I mention the project, you         

17 understand that I'm talking about the Grand Prairie     

18 Gateway project that's the subject of this proceeding,  

19 correct?                                                

20      A.    Yes.                                         

21      Q.    Okay.  Ignoring the cost of this project,    

22 the capital cost for the moment, isn't it true that all 

23 transmission projects that are networked like this one  

24 and that enhance connectivity also could be said to     

25 promote competition by improving access of generators   
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1 to customers or load?                                   

2      A.    I believe so, yes.                           

3      Q.    And vice versa, improving access of          

4 customers to sources of generation?                     

5      A.    Yes.                                         

6      Q.    If that's true, then couldn't it also be     

7 argued that any transmission project, even if not       

8 needed for reliability, could arguably qualify for a    

9 certificate of public convenience and necessity under   

10 the alternative test -- that being the competition      

11 test -- of 8-406.1F1, that the project will promote the 

12 development of an effectively competitive electricity   

13 market?                                                 

14      A.    That depends on how one interprets that      

15 provision, I suppose.  But if you're interpreting it in 

16 such a way where any project that has that potential to 

17 increase the connectivity and to bring access to more   

18 sources of generation, then -- if that's what that      

19 provision means, then I would agree with you.           

20      Q.    Okay.  I guess that's the question before    

21 us; one of the questions before us is whether that is   

22 what that provision means.  Would you agree?            

23      A.    I agree, yes.                                

24      Q.    Have you reviewed the PJM-RTEP related       

25 documents which led to the approval of this project?    
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1      A.    I doubt I read all of them because           

2 there's -- it's voluminous.  I have looked at some      

3 documents associated with that RTEP.                    

4      Q.    Okay.  But you've looked at quite a bit of   

5 information that is part of the RTEP that led to the    

6 approval of this project?                               

7      A.    I'm not sure how I would characterize it.    

8 I've looked at some, yes.                               

9      Q.    Okay.  As you understand those documents,    

10 including to the extent that you've reviewed them --    

11 the PJM tariff, PJM operating agreement, and other      

12 documents that go into that RTEP process -- do you know 

13 whether PJM considers or the extent -- strike that --   

14 do you know the extent to which PJM considers a         

15 project's capital cost in determining what transmission 

16 project is selected to eliminate the infeasibility of   

17 Stage 1A ARRs?                                          

18      A.    The extent to which?  No, I don't think I    

19 know the extent to which.  I believe that they do       

20 examine it.  They at least mention it in some of these  

21 documents, but I don't -- I don't know the extent to    

22 which it is a criteria of selection.                    

23      Q.    Okay.  Do you know -- When this project was  

24 selected by PJM, do you know what capital costs it      

25 assumed that the project would have at the time that it 
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1 was approved?                                           

2      A.    I have that information in an exhibit to my  

3 testimony, at least to the extent to which it was       

4 information in a PJM document; and it's for a project   

5 that -- my understanding is it's not exactly the same   

6 project that ComEd is proposing here.  It is            

7 approximately the same route, but I believe that it's   

8 not -- it doesn't have all of the features that the --  

9 the proposed projects here have.  So what -- The costs  

10 that were listed by PJM in this document do not         

11 necessarily include all of the costs associated with    

12 the project that is before us at the Illinois Commerce  

13 Commission.                                             

14      Q.    Okay.  Well, if you do -- if you do recall   

15 or you can find it in front of you, I would like to     

16 know what -- if you know what that capital cost was     

17 that was attached to this project at the time it was    

18 approved?  And I might refer you for help, if I might,  

19 to -- if you have it, to Mr. McGlynn's testimony,       

20 specifically as Exhibit 3.01.  -- I'm sorry -- strike   

21 that -- Exhibit 3.06.  And to help you further, that    

22 document is entitled TEAC Recommendations to the        

23 PJM Board dated October 2012.                           

24      A.    I'm sorry.  I don't have that in front of me 

25 here.                                                   
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1      Q.    Do you otherwise -- I think you said earlier 

2 you may have referred to that in your testimony or had  

3 that number in your testimony somewhere?                

4      A.    It's quite possible that what I was          

5 referring to in that regard were costs for projects     

6 that were proposed as economic efficiency projects.  So 

7 I'm searching here as we speak to see if I can obtain   

8 the information.  It's not popping out at me, I'm       

9 afraid.                                                 

10      Q.    Could you take a look at Staff Exhibit 1.1?  

11      A.    Yes, I'm looking at it.                      

12      Q.    It would be on the fourth page, the second   

13 project listed on that page, I believe, if I'm not      

14 mistaken, that this was a TEAC document from a prior    

15 time than the one that was part of then the ComEd       

16 Exhibit 3.06.                                           

17      A.    These were market efficiency -- These were   

18 projects that were proposed as market efficiency        

19 projects as opposed to projects proposed to address the 

20 Stage 1A ARRs.                                          

21            Is that acceptable to you?  I thought that   

22 you were asking about the latter.                       

23      Q.    Yes.  Have you read Mr. McGlynn's testimony  

24 and reviewed his exhibits?                              

25      A.    Yes.                                         
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1      Q.    Okay.  Do you recall in Exhibit 3.06 on      

2 page 4 of that TEAC report that it showed the cost of   

3 the project, which at that time was called the Byron to 

4 Wayne project, as estimated to be $109.6 million?  Do   

5 you recall that?                                        

6      A.    That specific number does not ring a bell to 

7 me, but I do recall that there was a document attached  

8 to his testimony that mentioned a dollar figure.        

9      Q.    You weren't present, were you, when          

10 Mr. McGlynn testified in this proceeding?               

11      A.    I was present here in Springfield watching   

12 and listening.                                          

13      Q.    Okay.  Do you recall a question of him about 

14 that very subject, and do you recall him --             

15 unfortunately, we don't have the transcript in front of 

16 us -- but do you recall him offering as a reason for    

17 the significant increase in the cost of the project     

18 between then and now is due to different tower          

19 structures using multi-circuit tower structures instead 

20 of the single circuit set of structures?                

21      MS. ERICSON:  I'm going to object to that.  Is     

22 this something you're asking of Mr. Zuraski's testimony 

23 and are you asking him --                               

24      MR. SHAY:  No.  I'm asking if he recalls           

25 Mr. McGlynn's testimony to that fact.                   
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1      MS. ERICSON:  As to Mr. Mr. Zuraski's testimony -- 

2      MR. SHAY:  It was in the cross-examination of him. 

3      MS. ERICSON:  No.  In Mr. Zuraski's testimony,     

4 what are you asking?                                    

5      MR. SHAY:  I'm sorry if I wasn't clear.  I'm       

6 asking if he recalls that.  He said he was listening to 

7 at least part of the testimony.                         

8      MS. ERICSON:  Right.  And I'm asking you What      

9 testimony of Mr. Zuraski are you crossing him with      

10 respect to these questions?                             

11      MR. SHAY:  Okay.  Well, this goes to the subject   

12 of the role of cost of the project and determining      

13 whether PJM approved it.  It's not any single item.     

14 It's sort of his testimony overall as to whether this   

15 project is one this Commission should approve.          

16      MR. BERNET:  I'm going to object, too.  I'm not    

17 sure that you properly characterized what Mr. McGlynn's 

18 testimony was on cross-examination.                     

19      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Well, I kind   

20 of remember that number coming up.                      

21            Do you want to ask him whether he agrees     

22 with the testimony, or what are you going to ask him?   

23      MR. SHAY:  Well, I think the question is there,    

24 I've asked him if he recalls that.                      

25      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  After we       
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1 establish that he does or does not recall it, where are 

2 you going with this?                                    

3      MR. SHAY:  Well, that's about it.  I'm just trying 

4 to get on the record if this witness has in mind what   

5 the projected cost of the project was at the time PJM   

6 approved it.                                            

7      MR. BERNET:  I think we just need to be clear on   

8 the record.  I think the testimony of Mr. McGlynn is    

9 that project that was approved back in -- or whenever   

10 that was.  The source of that number isn't the same     

11 thing as the project that is now before the Commission, 

12 and I want to be clear that we're not calling that      

13 project this project.                                   

14      MR. SHAY:  Well, if that's the case then, I'm      

15 wondering why this project is before this Commission if 

16 this project isn't the one PJM approved?                

17      MR. BERNET:  That's not what I said.  What I said  

18 was that the project that was the source of the         

19 109-million-dollar figure is not the project that is    

20 currently before the Commission.  I didn't say PJM      

21 approved that project.                                  

22      MR. SHAY:  Well -- I'm sorry.  Frankly, I'm now    

23 more confused because I thought Mr. McGlynn testified   

24 that the project PJM approved was the one that was      

25 recommended to the PJM Board by TEAC and that report    
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1 from TEAC has in it the Byron to Wayne project as       

2 costing $109.6 million.  So I guess I'm -- Now I'm      

3 confused by what project we're talking about.           

4      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  I'm kind of    

5 lost here.  Why don't you ask the witness another       

6 question and we can proceed from there because -- You   

7 can ask him a different version of the same question if 

8 you want to, but I'm not going to rule on the           

9 objections because I don't remember what the question   

10 was anymore.                                            

11 BY MR. SHAY:                                            

12      Q.    If I may, Mr. Zuraski, now that you've had   

13 time to contemplate a little further, is there anything 

14 more that you now recall about the projected cost of    

15 this project at the time PJM approved it?               

16      A.    I can't tell you if this was, quote, at the  

17 time PJM approved it.  All I can say is that I do       

18 recall seeing PJM documents.  And if I'm not mistaken,  

19 part of one of these documents or the entire document   

20 may have been attached to Mr. McGlynn's testimony in    

21 this proceeding and that the dollar figure attributed   

22 to a project which was called the -- something along    

23 the line of Byron to Wayne project was less than the    

24 project cost that ComEd has put forward in its          

25 testimony in this docket.  So you see what I'm saying   
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1 is, I think we may have been talking at some point      

2 about the same project; but at some point, a slightly   

3 different -- or I don't know if slightly, a different   

4 version of that project may have been not only put      

5 forward by ComEd in this proceeding but it may also     

6 have been put forward before and approved before PJM.   

7 But I'm not aware of that.                              

8      Q.    Okay.  That's fine.  Thank you.  We can move 

9 on.                                                     

10            On the subject of cost, what is your         

11 understanding of -- as of the latest information        

12 available from Commonwealth Edison on what the cost of  

13 this project is projected to be?  And you can define or 

14 qualify the word cost in any way you deem appropriate.  

15      A.    Okay.  The capital -- estimated capital cost 

16 for the project that -- the only ones that I recall     

17 seeing were those put forward in ComEd's direct         

18 testimony.  I don't recall them modifying those numbers 

19 at all during later stages of testimony.  And those     

20 numbers vary depending on exactly, you know, what you   

21 were defining as costs, as with your question.  One     

22 estimate from Company Witness Kaup was $277 million for 

23 the primary route and 336, 337 million for the          

24 alternative route.  Mr. Garrido indicated that some of  

25 these costs that I just mentioned were nonincremental   
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1 costs, nonincremental to this project, and he used the  

2 figure of 251 million for the primary route and 307 to  

3 311 for the alternative route.                          

4      Q.    Excuse me.  Just to clarify, were those      

5 two figures excluding some costs or allocable costs     

6 that would otherwise be incurred?                       

7      A.    Well, I think these are all going to be some 

8 costs once they're incurred.  But I took it that they   

9 were -- that they were costs that would be incurred     

10 with or without this project, that they were even       

11 excluding those when he said nonincremental costs.      

12      Q.    All right.  Thank you.                       

13            Do you have anything else?                   

14      A.    No.                                          

15      Q.    Okay.  At pages 25 and 26 of your direct     

16 testimony, if you could turn to that section, please.   

17      A.    Yes.                                         

18      Q.    Where you talk about, in the ending          

19 paragraph on 25 starting there, some of the financial   

20 information, including rate of return information on    

21 this project, I'd like to know what expected return     

22 that this project will produce for ComEd once it's      

23 completed and in rate base, based on your testimony.    

24      A.    I'm sorry.  Would you repeat that, please?   

25      Q.    Once this project, if it is approved and     
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1 constructed and in rate base, what return do you think  

2 it would earn the company?                              

3      A.    Well, my understanding is that it would --   

4 unless otherwise granted a higher return, it would --   

5 it would -- sort of, the default level would be 11 and  

6 a half percent on equity.  So that's the allowable rate 

7 of return, not to be confused with an actual rate of    

8 return.  It's also my understanding that this could be  

9 eligible for a higher incentive level of return, but I  

10 don't know what that higher level would be.             

11      Q.    Okay.  Do you include in your testimony,     

12 assuming that 11 and a half percent return on equity is 

13 earned, what dollar return that produces per year?      

14      A.    The dollar return?                           

15      Q.    Yes.  Don't you include that in your         

16 prepared testimony in that section, if I can direct you 

17 to Line 539?                                            

18      A.    I see what you're saying.  That actually was 

19 the -- could be described as a dollar return; that was  

20 more along the lines of a levelized revenue             

21 requirement.  So there would be other -- there would be 

22 other things included in there besides a return.  I     

23 don't have in front of me here what the -- you know, a  

24 computation of the return; for example, the return on   

25 equity on a year-by-year basis.  You would need the     
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1 approach that I utilized in my direct testimony or the  

2 approach that the company utilized when it presented    

3 its rebuttal testimony.  I don't have those numbers     

4 right in front of me here.                              

5      Q.    Okay.  Well, then what would you say that    

6 $30 million that appears on Line 539 represents?        

7      A.    In this case, it included some expenditures  

8 for maintenance that I thought could be incremental to  

9 this project.  It would also include recovery of taxes. 

10 It would also include recovery of interest and          

11 principal payments on debt and return not only on, but  

12 on the investments to equity capital.                   

13      Q.    It includes the return on equity, did you    

14 say?                                                    

15      A.    Right.  Yes, that's one component.           

16      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.                            

17            Mr. Zuraski, do you recall some fairly       

18 recent data requests that were propounded to Staff on   

19 behalf of URMC?                                         

20      A.    Yes, I do.                                   

21      Q.    Do you happen to have those in front of you, 

22 at least the ones that you answered?                    

23      A.    I do.                                        

24      Q.    Referring to No. 1.01, and rather than -- as 

25 your Honors would like otherwise, I could just ask him  
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1 questions based on these.                               

2      MR. BERNET:  Do you have copies?                   

3      MR. SHAY:  I do.                                   

4 BY MR. SHAY:                                            

5      Q.    Okay.  I did hand them out.  So does Staff   

6 agree -- and you are speaking for Staff on this -- that 

7 the PJM RTEP studies include power flow scenarios which 

8 have, as one of their fundamental -- I'm going to       

9 change the word "variables" to "parameters" because I   

10 think that was corrected over the past couple of        

11 days -- one of their fundamental parameters bulk        

12 transmission ratings?                                   

13      A.    Well --                                      

14      MR. BERNET:  I'm going to object.  I think this    

15 data request talks about transmission ratings.          

16 Mr. Zuraski's testimony -- it's beyond the scope of his 

17 testimony.  His testimony doesn't discuss transmission  

18 ratings.                                                

19      MR. SHAY:  Well, I didn't propound them -- these   

20 data requests specifically to Mr. Zuraski.  I           

21 propounded them to Staff, and Mr. Zuraski is the one    

22 that happened to answer it, so --                       

23      MR. BERNET:  I'm not suggesting he didn't answer   

24 them.  What I'm suggesting is, it's beyond the scope of 

25 his testimony.  And it's, in essence, additional        
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1 surrebuttal testimony of Mr. Zuraski, I think, ComEd    

2 filed in surrebuttal.                                   

3      MR. SHAY:  Your Honor, I think it's appropriate    

4 cross-examination of this witness.  I don't have a lot  

5 on the subject.                                         

6      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Well, I think  

7 it probably is beyond the scope of his testimony, but   

8 it's also a question that he affixed his name to the    

9 top as the answer; so I'm going to give him a little    

10 latitude here.                                          

11 BY MR. SHAY:                                            

12      Q.    I think the ruling is you can answer that,   

13 Mr. Zuraski.                                            

14      A.    I think the answer is yes.                   

15      Q.    Thank you.  And I'll ask you, what is the    

16 basis for your answer?                                  

17      A.    Well, I mean, it's common sense, first of    

18 all.  But beyond that, I did look at the PJM manual for 

19 transmission planning and it does talk about the        

20 transmission owners as part of the process providing    

21 information on all of their transmission elements which 

22 would essentially define their characteristics, their   

23 limitations, and the capabilities to PJM.  I don't know 

24 how you would go about doing a transmission plan        

25 without understanding the characteristics and           
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1 capability limitations of the transmission system that  

2 exists.                                                 

3      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.                            

4            The next data request that I would like you  

5 to refer to, Mr. Zuraski, is 1.02.                      

6      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  How many of    

7 these do you have?                                      

8      MR. SHAY:  At most three more, maybe less.         

9      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Why don't you  

10 pass them all out at the same time and give Counsel a   

11 chance to look at them.                                 

12      MR. SHAY:  Fair enough.                            

13 BY MR. SHAY:                                            

14      Q.    I've got, I think, three more I'd like to    

15 ask you about, Mr. Zuraski.  The next one is Data       

16 Request 1.02.  Do you have that in front of you?        

17      A.    Yes.                                         

18      Q.    And does the question there state that Staff 

19 agree that during the PJM market process, the           

20 transmission facilities owner provides the bulk         

21 transmission ratings referenced in the prior data       

22 request, that being 1.01 above, first to the FERC and   

23 second to PJM?                                          

24      MR. BERNET:  Again, I'm going to object.  This     

25 witness did not testify about the bulk transmission     
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1 ratings.  His testimony is as an economist, and I think 

2 this is improper, trying to get additional direct       

3 testimony into the record.                              

4      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Well, I agree  

5 with you; but I think his lack of background, or at     

6 least apparent to me, goes to its weight and I try to   

7 give people latitude in these proceedings to develop    

8 things and Mr. Zuraski is the witness who signed it.    

9 And without, I think, getting into any in-depth         

10 discussion, I think he's entitled to ask some basic     

11 questions about the information supplied.               

12      MR. BERNET:  Thank you.                            

13      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  So you can     

14 answer the question, Mr. Zuraski.                       

15 BY THE WITNESS:                                         

16      A.    I believe the answer is yes.                 

17      Q.    For both?                                    

18      A.    Yes, for both A and B.                       

19      Q.    Could you identify again for the record A    

20 and B?                                                  

21      A.    The question asked if during the PJM RTEP    

22 process, transmission facilities provided the bulk      

23 transmission ratings referenced in DR 1.01 above to     

24 FERC and B is PJM.                                      

25      Q.    And would the basis for your answer be       
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1 similar to the basis for your answer to the prior       

2 question, that being 1.01?                              

3      A.    With respect to B, it would be.  And with    

4 respect to A, it's my understanding that this is --     

5 that's the type of information that is provided to FERC 

6 on the FERC Form 715, which is an annual requirement,   

7 as I recall.                                            

8      Q.    Did you say 715?                             

9      A.    Yes.                                         

10      Q.    Thank you.  Does that complete your answer?  

11      A.    Yes.                                         

12      Q.    Referring to the next one 1.04, if I may     

13 read that one, does Staff agree the changes in bulk     

14 electric transmission ratings could have a direct       

15 effect on PJM's ARR solvency studies and as a result    

16 affect the PJM-calculated solutions to such ARR         

17 solvency issues?                                        

18      A.    I believe the answer is yes.                 

19      Q.    And, again, the basis?                       

20      A.    Well, if the ARR solvency issues, as you put 

21 it, are related to whether there is enough capacity     

22 available to provide the ARR and FTR coverage or to the 

23 extent to which is called for through the Stage 1A      

24 allocation and if for some reason or other you change   

25 your assumptions about how -- what those limitations    
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1 are on the transmission system, that's going to have an 

2 effect on the outcome of those solvency studies.        

3      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.                            

4            I think the last one was 1.13.  Do you have  

5 that in front of you?                                   

6      A.    Yes.                                         

7      Q.    Okay.  And that one reads, Does Staff        

8 believe that ComEd should consider all feasible and     

9 cost-effective opportunities to, one, achieve           

10 improvements in potential additional capacity on its    

11 transmission circuits; and, two, resolve ARR solvency   

12 issues as alternatives for the construction of new      

13 transmission lines.                                     

14      A.    So I believe that it makes sense to consider 

15 all feasible alternatives in addition to the            

16 construction of new transmission lines.  My only qualms 

17 with that would be, how much consideration one gives to 

18 each alternative.  If you start -- If you start looking 

19 at perpetual motion machines, I think you can rule      

20 those out pretty quickly; and going down the list, I'm  

21 sure there's lots of other alternatives that can be     

22 ruled out extremely quickly and don't require any       

23 studies to speak of.  So with that caveat, I would      

24 agree that there would be no reason to limit your       

25 attention to just one type of solution to the problem.  
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1      MR. SHAY:  Okay.  Thank you.                       

2            I have no further questions, your Honor.     

3            Thank you, Mr. Zuraski.                      

4      MR. BERNET:  Just a few questions, your Honor.     

5                    CROSS-EXAMINATION                    

6 BY MR. BERNET:                                          

7      Q.    Good afternoon, Mr. Zuraski.  Richard Bernet 

8 on behalf of Commonwealth Edison Company.               

9            Do you recall --                             

10      MS. ERICSON:  I'm going to interrupt you for a     

11 minute.  I believe that Staff and ComEd had a           

12 stipulated agreement that you were going to be entering 

13 in some responses and in lieu of cross, so I guess I    

14 would ask you to adhere to that.                        

15      MR. BERNET:  Well, yeah, I -- The reason we        

16 reserved time, we reserved ten minutes, is because we   

17 had to see what Mr. Zuraski -- how he was going to      

18 answer cross.                                           

19      MS. ERICSON:  Well, that's a little different from 

20 what we discussed.                                      

21      MR. BERNET:  Can we have a moment?                 

22      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Sure.          

23      MR. SHAY:  I guess I would express concern about   

24 crossing cross instead of crossing direct.              

25      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Well, do you   
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1 want to discuss this with us out of the room?           

2      MR. BERNET:  Yes.                                  

3      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.     

4                     (A short break was taken.)          

5      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Who wants to   

6 speak?                                                  

7      MR. BERNET:  Your Honor, I have no questions for   

8 Mr. Zuraski.                                            

9      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.          

10      MR. BERNET:  Thank you, Mr. Zuraski.               

11      THE WITNESS:  Thank you.                           

12      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Redirect?      

13      MS. ERICSON:  May we have a minute to consult with 

14 the witness?                                            

15      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  I thought that 

16 was what we just had.                                   

17      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Go ahead.      

18                     (A short break was taken.)          

19      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Do you have    

20 any redirect?                                           

21      MS. ERICSON:  No redirect.                         

22      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Mr. Zuraski, I 

23 understand they have no redirect and you are excused.   

24      THE WITNESS:  Thank you, your Honor.               

25      MR. RIPPIE:   The next witness is Dr. Peter        
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1 Valberg.                                                

2      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Let the record 

3 reflect that Mr. Valberg has been previously sworn.     

4                     (Witness previously sworn.)         

5 WHEREUPON:                                              

6                  PETER VALBERG, Ph.D.,                  

7 called as a witness herein, having been first duly      

8 sworn, was examined and testified as follows:           

9                    DIRECT EXAMINATION                   

10 BY MR. RIPPIE:                                          

11      Q.    Good afternoon.  Could you state your name   

12 and spell it for the record?                            

13      A.    My name is Peter Valberg; last name is V, as 

14 in Victor, A L B E R G.                                 

15      Q.    And, Dr. Valberg, is there before you a      

16 document which has been labeled ComEd Exhibit 20.0,     

17 together with attachments thereto, labeled 20.01 and    

18 20.02?                                                  

19      A.    Yes.                                         

20      Q.    Were those documents prepared by you or      

21 under your direction and control for submission to the  

22 Illinois they Commission in this docket?                

23      A.    They were.                                   

24      Q.    Is it your intention, Dr. Valberg, that      

25 those documents should collectively constitute your     
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1 rebuttal testimony before the Commission in this        

2 proceeding?                                             

3      A.    That's correct.                              

4      Q.    Do you have any additions or corrections to  

5 make to Exhibits 20.0 through 20.02?                    

6      A.    Not at this time.                            

7      Q.    If I were to ask you the same questions that 

8 appear on those documents today, would you give me the  

9 same answers?                                           

10      A.    Yes, I would.                                

11      Q.    Do you also have before you a document that  

12 has been labeled ComEd Exhibit 29.0?                    

13      A.    Yes.                                         

14      Q.    And was that document prepared by you or     

15 under your direction and control for submission to the  

16 Illinois Commerce Commission in this proceeding?        

17      A.    Yes.                                         

18      Q.    And is it your intention that that document  

19 stand as your surrebuttal testimony before the          

20 Commission in this docket?                              

21      A.    Correct.                                     

22      Q.    And if I were to ask you the same questions  

23 as appear in that document, would you give me the same  

24 answers today?                                          

25      A.    Yes.                                         
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1      Q.    Are there any additions or corrections that  

2 need be made to that document?                          

3      A.    Not at this time.                            

4      MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honors, I would offer into       

5 Exhibits 20.0 through 20.02 and Exhibit 29.0.           

6      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Objections?    

7                     (No response.)                      

8      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  There are no   

9 objections.  The Exhibits 20.0 and 20.02 and 29 will be 

10 admitted into the record.                               

11      MR. RIPPIE:   Your Honors, the witness is          

12 available for cross-examination.                        

13      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  We have two    

14 examiners for this gentleman?                           

15      MR. PHILLIPS:  That's correct, your Honor.         

16      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  You may        

17 proceed.                                                

18                    CROSS-EXAMINATION                    

19 BY MR. PHILLIPS:                                        

20      Q.    Good afternoon, Dr. Valberg.  My name is     

21 Jonathan Phillips.  I represent a handful of            

22 intervenors as well URMC in these proceedings.  How are 

23 you today?                                              

24      A.    Fine.  Thank you.                            

25      Q.    When I use the term "the project," will you  
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1 understand that I mean the ComEd Grand Prairie Gateway  

2 project?                                                

3      A.    Yes, the transmission line.                  

4      Q.    Yes.  Sir, is it a fair statement that       

5 epidemiological studies have repeatedly shown a small   

6 association between measures of residential power       

7 lines, magnetic fields, and childhood leukemia?         

8      A.    Epidemiology studies have shown a number of  

9 times that there are such associations.  Other -- Some  

10 studies have shown no association.  So the record is    

11 rather inconsistent.                                    

12      Q.    Have you ever authored a paper that had such 

13 a statement in it, as the one I just read to you?       

14      A.    I may have.  I don't recall.                 

15      Q.    Do you recall Childhood Leukemia, colon,     

16 Electric and Magnetic Fields as Possible Risk Factors   

17 you may have written with a Mr. Joseph Brain, Robert    

18 Kavet, David L. McCormick, Charles Poole, Louis         

19 Silverman, Thomas J. Smith, yourself, a Mr. or          

20 Mrs. Van Etten, and James C. Weaver?                    

21      A.    Yes, now I recall that paper.                

22      Q.    And in that paper, was there a statement     

23 similar to the one I read, the first question I asked   

24 you?                                                    

25      A.    I would take your word for it.               
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1      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.                            

2            Is it a fair statement that electromagnetic  

3 fields are a suspected risk factor for childhood        

4 leukemia?                                               

5      A.    There is some suspicion, that is correct.    

6      Q.    Thank you.  For this transmission line or    

7 this project, did you conduct any electromagnetic field 

8 measurements --                                         

9      A.    No.                                          

10      Q.    -- or calculations?                          

11      A.    No to both questions.                        

12      Q.    In fact, did you rely solely upon data       

13 provided to you by Commonwealth Edison Company?         

14      A.    Yes.                                         

15      Q.    Have you reviewed the testimony of a         

16 Mr. Kaup regarding the type of transmission line        

17 superstructures they're intending to utilize in this    

18 transmission line?                                      

19      A.    I don't recall reviewing that particular     

20 one.  I have a binder here of materials I've looked at, 

21 and I don't recall that being in this binder.           

22      Q.    Okay.  Are you -- You did mention in your    

23 testimony that you reviewed the data that was given to  

24 you by Commonwealth Edison; is that correct?            

25      A.    Yes.                                         
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1      Q.    Do you recall that the EMF calculations      

2 relied on an assumption of 195-foot wide right-of-way?  

3      A.    Yes.                                         

4      Q.    And do you recall that those calculations    

5 rely upon a single 345 kilovolt circuit on a            

6 transmission structure, in some instances, capable of   

7 holding up to three circuits, that is a triple circuit  

8 supporting transmission volt?                           

9      A.    My understanding is that the support         

10 structures may, in fact, be capable of supporting other 

11 conductors as well as the ones proposed.                

12      Q.    Do you recall if those would be              

13 triple-circuit or double-circuit structures?            

14      A.    My best recollection is that they were       

15 double-circuit structures.                              

16      Q.    Have you reviewed the proposed routing       

17 that's been put forth by Ms. Murphy in these            

18 proceedings?                                            

19      A.    I've not reviewed any particular             

20 geographical layouts, no.                               

21      Q.    So it's fair to say you didn't drive the     

22 route at all either?                                    

23      A.    That's correct.                              

24      Q.    Have you ever testified before the Public -- 

25 Department of Public Utilities in the Commonwealth of   
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1 Massachusetts?                                          

2      A.    Yes, I have.                                 

3      Q.    Have you testified in Docket DPU 09, dash,   

4 1365437?                                                

5      A.    I don't remember them by docket number, but  

6 it's possible.                                          

7      Q.    Do you recall testifying regarding the       

8 construction of a new 115 kilovolt transmission line    

9 from the Millbury Substation in Tower 510 in            

10 Massachusetts?                                          

11      A.    That does sound familiar.                    

12      Q.    And do you recall whether or not you         

13 actually did your own calculations for your testimony   

14 in that?                                                

15      A.    In some projects, I do my own calculations,  

16 that is correct; and that may well be one them.  I'd    

17 have to go back and check for sure.                     

18      Q.    You said in some projects you do, in fact,   

19 do your own calculations?                               

20      A.    Correct.                                     

21      Q.    Do you recall whether or not there were      

22 differing right-of-way configurations for that project? 

23      A.    I don't recall, but it's often the case that 

24 right-of-way configurations can be changed and there    

25 are, in fact, alternatives that are considered.         
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1      Q.    Do you recall --                             

2      MR. PHILLIPS:  May I approach, your Honor.         

3      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Sure.          

4                     (Document tendered.)                

5      MR. SHAY:  When we go off the record, I can make   

6 a --                                                    

7      MS. SWAN:  Your Honors, there aren't enough copies 

8 for all attorneys.  Can we take a moment?               

9      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Sure.          

10                     (A short break was taken.)          

11      MR. PHILLIPS:  Sorry about that, everybody.        

12            May I proceed, your Honors?                  

13      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Go ahead.      

14 Please.                                                 

15 BY MR. PHILLIPS:                                        

16      Q.    In this -- Mr. Valberg, in this Commonwealth 

17 document that you testified in, was there more than one 

18 right-of-way configuration?                             

19      A.    Yes, there was.                              

20      Q.    Were you aware of whether or not there's     

21 more than one right-of-way configuration in this        

22 particular docket, as in today's docket?                

23      A.    There may be different right-of-way widths,  

24 but I'm not aware that there are different right-of-way 

25 configurations that are planned for this particular     
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1 circuit.                                                

2      Q.    Okay.  So you're unaware of whether or not   

3 the transmission line superstructures are being used    

4 for different parts of the route in this particular     

5 case?                                                   

6      A.    I'm not aware of the details of which        

7 structures are used on which parts of the route of the  

8 line.  My understanding was they were primarily         

9 double-circuit towers.                                  

10      Q.    In the Commonwealth of Massachusetts,        

11 Department of Public Utilities docket that you have     

12 before you, did you provide different values for        

13 different right-of-way configurations?                  

14      A.    Yes.                                         

15      Q.    Did you provide only a singular value for an 

16 EMF in today's docket?                                  

17      A.    Well, the value I provided was the one that  

18 Commonwealth Edison had calculated.  I might make sure  

19 to add that on the values that are provided in the      

20 Commonwealth of Massachusetts' docket, the difference   

21 between the different values is quite small, that       

22 there's not a great deal of difference between          

23 different configuration and -- In fact, what that       

24 docket showed was that as you add lines to a            

25 right-of-way, you can, in fact, in some cases cause the 
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1 fields to go down.  And adding a line to a right-of-way 

2 does not necessarily mean that you'll get more EMF.     

3      Q.    Fair enough.  Thank you.                     

4            As you sit here today, Mr. Valberg, can you  

5 guarantee that there is not an EMF to adverse health    

6 effect link?                                            

7      A.    Science can never prove a negative, but I    

8 think that there has been considerable research, as I   

9 provided in my rebuttal testimony, in the 35 years      

10 since this issue began to be researched quite           

11 vigorously and so you can't rule out any kind of risk   

12 for any human activity.  However, in terms of the       

13 energy that has been put in to investigating this       

14 issue, I think it's been quite considerable, not only   

15 by the scientists themselves, but by regulatory         

16 agencies who have looked at it time and time again and  

17 have not been able to find a consistent pattern of      

18 increased risk.  Consequently, there are -- there's no  

19 expectation that at these levels that we're talking     

20 about here, an EMF or electromagnetic fields, that      

21 there would be an adverse health effect.  You can't     

22 prove a negative.                                       

23      Q.    So the answer is, you cannot guarantee that  

24 there's not an EMF to adverse health effect link,       

25 obviously with all those qualifications you just made?  
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1      A.    With all those qualifications.  What I'm     

2 saying, though, is that the guarantee that we have here 

3 is better, if anything, than guarantees we have in      

4 other areas where there are other health effect         

5 regulations.                                            

6      Q.    But you yourself have authored a paper that  

7 says that EMF is a suspected risk factor for childhood  

8 leukemia, correct?                                      

9      A.    There are many agents that are out there     

10 that are suspected factors for health effects, let's    

11 say primarily cancer or other health effects.  So if    

12 you were to go through the literature and list what are 

13 all the factors that have been listed as suspected, you 

14 would have a very large university, most of which are   

15 unlikely to be actual factors and most of which the     

16 public health regulatory agencies have not determined   

17 or have reached adequate evidence to be considered a    

18 legitimate health risk.                                 

19      Q.    I understand that there are many suspected   

20 risk factors, but what I'm asking is, have you authored 

21 a paper that listed EMF as a suspected risk factor for  

22 childhood leukemia?                                     

23      A.    That paper did use that terminology,         

24 correct.                                                

25      Q.    Thank you.                                   
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1            And with that in mind, do you recognize that 

2 laypersons can be and are fearful and anxious about     

3 adverse health effects from power line EMF?             

4      A.    I'm aware that there are concerns out there. 

5 You know, many of those concerns, in fact, are          

6 increased by activist organizations that try to         

7 increase the fear without really a scientific basis.    

8 And what I tried to provide in my rebuttal testimony    

9 was the examples of public health organizations which   

10 look at the data and look at the strengths and          

11 weaknesses and more importantly look at it in the       

12 context of the greater public health picture and        

13 determine whether or not action is required at this     

14 time and as we stand here at the present day, they have 

15 not reached that decision that action is required.      

16      Q.    Mr. Valberg, would you agree that the        

17 quality of medicine, medical science, and application   

18 of those medical science has gotten better since the    

19 year 1900?                                              

20      A.    Yes.  Our understanding of medical science   

21 has improved dramatically.                              

22      Q.    Do you believe the Centers for Disease       

23 Control and Prevention are a reputable institution?     

24      A.    All of these public health agencies have     

25 their strengths and weaknesses, and the Centers for     
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1 Disease Control is an example of one, that has some     

2 strong positions, yes.                                  

3      Q.    Would you believe its research to generally  

4 be sound and reliable?                                  

5      A.    I'm not aware that the CDC has done research 

6 on EMF, but you'd have to point me to specific examples 

7 that you're thinking of.                                

8      Q.    It actually won't be about EMF, sir.  But    

9 generally is the CDC's research generally sound and     

10 reliable?                                               

11      MR. RIPPIE:  I object to the question.  If we're   

12 not going to talk about EMF and we're not going to talk 

13 about -- I don't know what we're talking about then.    

14 That's the scope of the witness' testimony, I suppose   

15 stray voltage.                                          

16      MR. PHILLIPS:  Your Honor, if I may, in the        

17 rebuttal testimony of Mr. Valberg, he states the        

18 national health statistics do not show an increase or   

19 decrease -- or an increase in disease over the period   

20 of 1900 to today's date.  I'm simply laying a           

21 foundation to find out whether or not the CDC --        

22      MR. RIPPIE:  I withdraw the objection.             

23      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.          

24      MR. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.                          

25 BY THE WITNESS:                                         
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1      A.    Well, I still -- my answer is still that you 

2 would have to determine what it is that you are         

3 referring to because in the amount of scientific        

4 literature that's out there, you can't give blanket     

5 endorsements and say everything that this agency does   

6 is reliable or everything that they put out on their    

7 publication list is reliable.  You really have to look  

8 at the strengths and weaknesses of each individual      

9 thing.  Some agencies are very good at some things and  

10 not so good at others.                                  

11      Q.    Is the CDC good at pooling together data     

12 regarding cardiovascular disease, or are you aware?     

13      A.    That's one of the things that the CDC does.  

14 And if they are basing it on the National Center for    

15 Health Statistics, then they, in fact, can pool that    

16 information together, yes.                              

17      Q.    Okay.  Do you agree that cardiovascular      

18 disease is the leading cause of death since 1921?       

19      A.    I'm sorry.  Could you repeat that?           

20      Q.    Do you agree that cardiovascular diseases    

21 are a leading cause of death since the year 1921?       

22      A.    Correct.                                     

23      Q.    Do you believe that age-adjusted deaths have 

24 declined 60 percent since the year 1950 for             

25 cardiovascular disease?                                 
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1      A.    I would have to look at the statistics.  I   

2 can't carry them around in my head.                     

3      Q.    Understood.  Do you believe that, in         

4 general, they have decreased since the year 1950?       

5      A.    My understanding is that they have, yes.     

6      Q.    In your opinion, do you believe that to be a 

7 fair characterization, that the reason for the decline  

8 is from the advances in prevention and medicine?        

9      A.    I think that there are multiple reasons.     

10 I'm not sure that anyone really knows for sure why      

11 diseases increase or decrease over time, but I think    

12 prevention and a healthier lifestyle are probably the   

13 two main factors.                                       

14      Q.    I want to make sure I understood you         

15 correctly.  You just said you don't know why -- or it   

16 would be difficult to say you don't know why a disease  

17 would increase or decrease over time?                   

18      A.    I think that there are authors who look at   

19 that question and review it, and I think I would refer  

20 to one of those review articles to look at what the     

21 hypothetical reasons are.  I think that for public      

22 health purposes, I think there has been a dramatic      

23 increase in healthier lifestyle, decreased smoking,     

24 decrease alcohol intake, better diet, more exercise,    

25 and so on.  All of those are known to be good factors   
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1 in improving health.                                    

2      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.                            

3            Moving on, do you agree that stray voltage   

4 can decrease dairy production from dairy cows?          

5      A.    I have seen papers that have reported that   

6 that does occur, and I have seen papers that report     

7 that it does not occur.  I guess the question, really,  

8 is to define what you mean by stray voltage.            

9      Q.    Can you define what you mean by stray -- or  

10 what you have used stray voltage as, sir?               

11      A.    When I wrote my surrebuttal, I gave it what  

12 I think is the most common definition, which is a lack  

13 of adequate grounding in distribution in home and farm  

14 circuitry which causes the ground to be above the       

15 potential of the earth and so if you touch this object, 

16 you might get a slight shock and so the stray voltage   

17 is really a grounding problem at the electricity        

18 distribution level.                                     

19      Q.    In your testimony, did you ever characterize 

20 elevated neutral to earth voltage differences as stray  

21 voltage?                                                

22      A.    I would have to look at the details of that, 

23 but it's possible that the neutral could be elevated    

24 relative to earth and that that could be a source of    

25 stray voltage.                                          
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1      Q.    In your testimony, you cited to the Effects  

2 of Electrical Voltage, slash, Current on Farm Animals,  

3 colon, How to Detect and Remedy Problems as a good      

4 informational resource, did you not?                    

5      A.    Could you repeat that again, please?         

6      Q.    In your testimony --                         

7      A.    Are you referring -- Maybe you should refer  

8 me to a particular --                                   

9      Q.    Yes.  Sorry.  Your rebuttal testimony,       

10 page 27, Lines 593 to 596.  And in that approximate     

11 area, sir, do you cite the effects of electrical --     

12      MR. RIPPIE:   What was that reference again?       

13      MR. PHILLIPS:  ComEd Exhibit 20 -- Sorry.  It      

14 would be page 27, Line 593 to 596.                      

15      MR. RIPPIE:   Thank you.                           

16      MR. PHILLIPS:  Sorry if I said 25.                 

17 BY THE WITNESS:                                         

18      A.    Yes, I found that location.  And your        

19 question?                                               

20      Q.    Okay.  In that particular area, did you cite 

21 to or reference the Effects of the Electrical Voltage,  

22 slash, Current on Farm Animals:  How to Defect and      

23 Remedy Problems as a good informational resource?       

24      A.    Well, that's one of many.  But yes, that's a 

25 pretty comprehensive one.                               
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1      Q.    The United States Department of Agriculture  

2 put together that particular document, did it not?      

3      A.    Yes, and it gave a list of authors.  I think 

4 there was a primary author, but that is the U.S.        

5 Department of Agriculture.                              

6      Q.    Would dairy farmers be well advised to       

7 review this document before accusing the utility        

8 company of stray voltage problems?                      

9      A.    I think it's one source that they could      

10 review.  I don't know if I'm in a position to say what  

11 they would be well advised to do or not.                

12      Q.    Why would you not be in a position to advise 

13 on what a dairy farmer should or should not do?         

14      A.    Well, what I'm saying is, I'm offering it    

15 here as a reference that I think is a very valuable     

16 reference that they could certainly look to.  I don't   

17 claim to have experience in daily farming.  I grew up   

18 in Indiana, but I'm not a dairy farmer.  So I don't     

19 want to in any way say that I have expertise in dairy   

20 farming.                                                

21      Q.    Thank you.                                   

22            Can transmission lines cause stray voltage   

23 issues?                                                 

24      A.    In some very limited circumstances, they can 

25 cause a little bit of voltage to appear on isolated     
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1 conductors.                                             

2      Q.    Do you agree that dairy cattle are more      

3 susceptible to stray voltages due to their relatively   

4 lower body resistances?                                 

5      A.    Well, I guess I'm not going to opine on body 

6 resistances of dairy cows; but as I point out in my     

7 testimony, that dairy farmers do, in fact, use          

8 electrified fences to help confine animals.  And        

9 electrified fences produce levels of contact voltage    

10 and current to the cow that are higher than more        

11 typical stray voltages and so if you are considering    

12 the potential effect of stray voltages on animals, you  

13 have to factor in the realization that this has been a  

14 fencing practice that has been accepted as not causing  

15 animal -- you know, distress in animals or disease in   

16 animals.                                                

17      Q.    You just used the phrase "potential effect   

18 of stray voltage."  Is it your testimony today that     

19 there are potentially effects of stray voltage on dairy 

20 cattle?                                                 

21      A.    As I said at the outset of my testimony,     

22 some articles report that there are effects; other ones 

23 report that they are not effected.  I think what I saw  

24 was missing in the testimony that I reviewed was any    

25 particular attempt to relate stray voltage issues to    
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1 the transmission line.  In fact, almost every citation  

2 had to do with what looked to be electrical faults in   

3 home and farm wiring.                                   

4      Q.    Okay.  Just one final question, Mr. Valberg: 

5 Do you agree the relationship between an elevated       

6 neutral to earth and stray voltage is so strong that a  

7 reduction of the same should be considered in the       

8 context of natural farm management programs regardless  

9 of a proven stray voltage problem?                      

10      A.    I guess I can't agree with that as a blanket 

11 statement.  The situation with any kind of stray        

12 voltage would always have to be where does it come      

13 from, how large is it, and how likely is it to affect   

14 the animals who come in contact with it and so you      

15 can't make a blanket statement that any elevation of    

16 neutral above ground is going -- is going to have an    

17 adverse effect.                                         

18      Q.    Are you aware that that statement appears in 

19 what you've referred to as a good informational         

20 resource?                                               

21      A.    It may appear there, but I think what you    

22 have to do is take that statement in context because I  

23 think all of these statements realize that it's not     

24 only what you call it, whether you call it an elevation 

25 or not, the -- what's important is the actual amount;   
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1 and I recall that reference goes through a great detail 

2 of calculation as to what amperage of stray voltage     

3 current would or would not have an adverse effect.  So  

4 just saying that there is a non-zero stray voltage is   

5 not sufficient to that say it's adverse.                

6      Q.    And I understand your qualifications on      

7 answering the question and I understand what you're     

8 getting at, just in general, are you aware of whether   

9 or not that statement appears in what you have cited as 

10 a good informational resource?                          

11      A.    It's over a 100-page document.  I think it   

12 could possibly be in there, but then I would also refer 

13 you to the fact that in my surrebuttal testimony, I     

14 also pointed out that very same document also states    

15 that they feel that farmers' concern about transmission 

16 lines is, in fact, not justified as a source of stray   

17 voltage.                                                

18      MR. PHILLIPS:  May I approach, your Honor's?       

19      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Sure.          

20      MR. PHILLIPS:  I have a copy.  I don't know if     

21 anyone else wants this.                                 

22 BY MR. PHILLIPS:                                        

23      Q.    There you are, sir.                          

24                     (Document tendered.)                

25      MS. ERICSON:  Can you tell us what you just handed 
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1 out?                                                    

2      MR. PHILLIPS:  I'm sorry.  What was that?          

3      MS. ERICSON:  Tell us what you handed out.         

4      MR. PHILLIPS:  I'll let you see.                   

5      MR. RIPPIE:   Tell you what, your Honors, we'll be 

6 happy to stipulate that that sentence appears if        

7 Counsel for SKP parties is willing to stipulate to the  

8 previous sentence in the paragraph as well.  We can     

9 resolve this whole thing.                               

10      MR. PHILLIPS:  That's fine, your Honors.           

11      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Do you want to 

12 read it into the record?                                

13      MR. RIPPIE:   Sure.  Could you read those two      

14 paragraphs -- sentences then, rather?                   

15      THE WITNESS:  Yes.                                 

16            The immediately preceding sentence states    

17 the following:  However, an elevated neutral to earth   

18 voltage does not necessarily result in stray voltage    

19 that affects animals and the existence of stray voltage 

20 is not always related to an elevated neutral to earth   

21 voltage.                                                

22      Q.    And could you read the next sentence, sir?   

23      A.    And the next sentence, I believe, was the    

24 one you were referring to:  Still the relationship      

25 between an elevated neutral to earth voltage and stray  
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1 voltage is so strong that a reduction of elevated       

2 neutral to earth voltages should be considered within   

3 the context of normal farm management programs          

4 regardless of a proven stray voltage current problem.   

5      MS. ERICSON:  For clarification for the record,    

6 could you just identify the document you're reading     

7 from?                                                   

8      THE WITNESS:  Well, the document title is Effects  

9 of Electrical Voltage, slash, Current on Farm Animals,  

10 colon, How to Detect and Remedy Problems and the main   

11 author line says U.S. Department of Agriculture,        

12 Beltsville, Maryland, December 1991.                    

13      MR. BRADY:  What page number was that?  Did you    

14 also announce that?                                     

15      MR. PHILLIPS:  I'm sorry.  I did not.  That would  

16 be separated in chapters, slash -- or dash, page        

17 numbers.  And that would be Chapter 7, dash, 3.         

18      MR. BRADY:  Thank you.                             

19      MR. PHILLIPS:  And I've no further questions, your 

20 Honors.                                                 

21            Thank you very much, Mr. Valberg.            

22                    CROSS-EXAMINATION                    

23 BY MR. KALB:                                            

24      Q.    Good afternoon, Mr. Valberg.  My name is     

25 Brian Kalb.  I'm the attorney for some intervenors in   
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1 this proceeding.                                        

2            Mr. Valberg, you're not a medical doctor,    

3 are you?                                                

4      A.    No, I'm not.                                 

5      Q.    Do you have any experience in grain farming? 

6      A.    I'm sorry?                                   

7      Q.    Do you have experience in grain farming?     

8 You mentioned you're from Indiana.                      

9      A.    No.  I grew up in farming country, but I was 

10 not a farmer.  My father was a college teacher.         

11      Q.    Did you attend any public meetings held by   

12 ComEd in this proceeding?                               

13      A.    No, I did not.                               

14      Q.    Have you talked to any intervenors in this   

15 docket?                                                 

16      A.    No.                                          

17      Q.    Now, in your rebuttal testimony, you         

18 concluded that the EMF that will be produced as a       

19 result of this project would not be expected to have    

20 any adverse health impact, correct?                     

21      A.    Correct.                                     

22      Q.    Is that meant to be an adverse health impact 

23 on humans?                                              

24      A.    Either humans or animals.                    

25      Q.    Including dairy cows?                        
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1      A.    Correct.                                     

2      Q.    If I understood you correctly, you're not    

3 here to give opinions on the impact of stray voltage on 

4 dairy cows, correct?                                    

5      A.    I'm not here to debate the stray voltage per 

6 se issue.  What I was looking for in the testimony was  

7 something that linked stray voltage to this particular  

8 project.  I think the stray voltage as this document    

9 shows and many other documents show are related to      

10 distribution and wiring problems.  If it does exist,    

11 that's where the source would be.                       

12      Q.    We'll get into that further in a moment.  I  

13 just wanted to understand the scope of your opinions    

14 here.                                                   

15            Have you performed any studies on the impact 

16 of stray voltage on dairy cows?                         

17      A.    No.                                          

18      Q.    Have you co-authored any reports on the      

19 impact of stray voltage on dairy cows?                  

20      A.    No, I have not.                              

21      Q.    As you sit here today, do you profess to be  

22 an expert on stray voltage?                             

23      A.    I don't profess to be an expert on           

24 determining what level of stray voltage might be        

25 adverse versus what level is not.  So there is, I'm     
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1 sure, a fair number of articles that address what would 

2 be allowable and conceivably not have any effect and    

3 then what level might cause some change in animal       

4 behavior.  And that's the part that I'm not testifying  

5 about today.                                            

6      Q.    So if I understand this, your opinion on     

7 stray voltage is based on the minimal likelihood of the 

8 transmission line producing stray voltage that could be 

9 harmful to dairy cows, correct?                         

10      A.    Yes, correct, at the level necessary for at  

11 least the figures I saw in the papers I've referenced.  

12      Q.    Are the papers that you're speaking of right 

13 now concerning the levels of stray voltage that can     

14 impact dairy cows?                                      

15      A.    Yes.                                         

16      Q.    Are those papers cited in your testimony,    

17 either rebuttal or surrebuttal?                         

18      A.    No, I did not cite them.  I cited this one   

19 because it's a very nice integrated paper, but then I   

20 did, in fact, take a look at papers that had been cited 

21 by the intervenors.                                     

22      Q.    And going back to the line in the testimony  

23 regarding the impact or the minimal risk that a         

24 transmission line would have on dairy cows due to stray 

25 voltage, you mentioned that there's only limited        
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1 circumstances that exist that a transmission line could 

2 result in stray voltage, correct?                       

3      A.    Yes.                                         

4      Q.    I'm trying to understand how that works.  So 

5 as I understand from your testimony, the transmission   

6 line itself will not produce stray voltage; is that     

7 correct?                                                

8      A.    Right.  The transmission line is not         

9 connected to the ground at any location.                

10      Q.    So when I am driving through Illinois and I  

11 see transmission lines, in and of themselves, those     

12 transmission lines are not producing stray voltage,     

13 correct?                                                

14      A.    Well, they're --                             

15      Q.    They're not capable of producing stray       

16 voltage because there's no ground?                      

17      A.    That's why I emphasized at the beginning of  

18 my testimony, it depends upon what you mean by stray    

19 voltage.  There are circumstances where if you have a   

20 large semitrailer that would be parked parallel to the  

21 lines, that it may cause some charge to appear on that  

22 semiitrailer to the extent that a small amount of stray 

23 voltage would occur when a driver enters that           

24 semitrailer that's parked in such a location.           

25      Q.    Can you explain why that -- why that would   
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1 happen, why the presence of the trailer would create a  

2 charge?                                                 

3      A.    The phenomenon has to do with the fact that  

4 the trailer is isolated from ground.  In other words,   

5 first of all, you have to postulate a trailer that is   

6 on rubber wheels, so it's not connected to ground.  If  

7 it has a ground strap, then this is all off.  I mean,   

8 you're, first of all, assuming the trailer is           

9 completely insulated from the ground in every way; and  

10 then secondly, you have to assume it's quite large      

11 because there would be some what's called capacitive    

12 coupling between the line and the trailer and so it     

13 will induce a small voltage on the trailer that's       

14 proportional to its volume, essentially, how big is it  

15 and so that voltage when the trailer is parked parallel 

16 to the lines can be large enough to sense.              

17      Q.    So quite literally, the voltage from the     

18 high powered voltage transmission line will stray to    

19 the trailer which is insulated because of the rubber    

20 tires; and then when the driver gets in, he'll feel     

21 that slight shock?                                      

22      A.    Right.  I don't know if stray is the correct 

23 term.  You don't actually lose any energy to the        

24 trailer, but it will cause the trailer to have a slight 

25 voltage above ground.                                   
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1      Q.    I would assume that that's why they call it  

2 stray voltage because it --                             

3      A.    Well --                                      

4      Q.    Maybe there's a another term for it.         

5            As it relates -- Back to the cows.  You      

6 mentioned that the dairy cow or anybody may feel a      

7 shock if there is not an adequate grounding off the     

8 distribution lines, correct?                            

9      MR. RIPPIE:  Misrepresents the witness' testimony, 

10 your Honor.                                             

11 BY MR. KALB:                                            

12      Q.    Did I misrepresent your testimony --         

13      MR. KALB:  Was that an objection?                  

14      MR. RIPPIE:  It absolutely was an objection.       

15      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  I think it's   

16 an objection.  Can you rephrase or do you want to show  

17 me --                                                   

18      MR. KALB:  I'll rephrase.                          

19      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.          

20 BY MR. KALB:                                            

21      Q.    You talked earlier about the circumstances   

22 that can lead to a cow being shocked, correct?          

23      A.    Uh-huh.                                      

24      Q.    Is that correct?                             

25      A.    Yes.                                         
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1      Q.    All right.  Can you tell me that again?  Can 

2 you explain that again?                                 

3      A.    Well, I mentioned two circumstances.  I      

4 think the very clear and predominant circumstance is if 

5 a cow wanders into an electrified fence and so the      

6 electrified fence is there specifically to keep the cow 

7 confined and so that gives it a shock and that keep it  

8 from wandering through the fence.  So that's a voltage  

9 that isn't really a stray voltage; it's a purposeful    

10 voltage, but for practical consideration.  It's         

11 definitely a shock to the cow.                          

12            The other possibility this occurs is when    

13 you have electrical appliances either -- well, in the   

14 farm, let's say -- if you have electrical appliances    

15 that can be -- that some of the voltage that is driving 

16 that electrical appliance can appear on the outer       

17 metallic shell of the appliance and that that would     

18 give the difference between the metallic shell and      

19 ground and then if a cow ran into that, they would feel 

20 a shock.  And so those are the two primary              

21 circumstances:  the electrified fence and then, number  

22 two, appliances that are not well grounded.             

23      Q.    And is there situations where the cow can    

24 get shock from stray voltage from a distribution line?  

25      A.    No, not that I'm aware of.  I mean, a        
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1 distribution line might have some problems with         

2 grounding which could be transferred to the home        

3 circuit but not from the electric and magnetic fields   

4 from the distribution line.                             

5      Q.    How is it that a cow can be shocked as a     

6 result of stray voltage from any kind of transmission   

7 or distribution line?                                   

8      A.    Well, I guess what I'm trying to explain is  

9 that stray voltage that is most commonly addressed in   

10 all of these articles is a stray voltage that is caused 

11 by poor grounding where there is movement of the hot    

12 line, if you will, the voltage coming into your house   

13 to the shell of the appliance.  And that's why we have  

14 ground fault interrupters, you know, in our houses.     

15 The ground fault interrupters sense that there is a     

16 current coming out that's not returning on the neutral  

17 wire, it's returning on the ground wire.  And that's    

18 essentially the shock to ground that the animal may     

19 feel.  And it has to do with a fault in the electrical  

20 appliance or in the circuitry that supplies the         

21 electrical appliance.                                   

22      Q.    Is there circumstances where the animal will 

23 feel shock when he's drinking water -- or its drinking  

24 water?                                                  

25      MR. RIPPIE:   In general, or are you asking about  
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1 something that has anything to do with the transmission 

2 line?                                                   

3      MR. KALB:  In circumstances where there is poor    

4 grounding resulting from the transmission or            

5 distribution line.                                      

6      MR. RIPPIE:  Okay.  Poor grounding resulting from  

7 the transmission or distribution line?                  

8      MR. KALB:  Right.                                  

9      MR. RIPPIE:  Okay.                                 

10 BY THE WITNESS:                                         

11      A.    And my answer is, I guess I can't envision   

12 how that would happen.  You'd have to be more specific  

13 as to where that occurred, and I will evaluate whether  

14 that seemed like a possibility or not.                  

15      Q.    You've never read any studies where farm     

16 animals were shocked drinking water as a result of      

17 stray voltage?                                          

18      A.    Well, the animal would have to be connected  

19 to a source of voltage -- well, either the water itself 

20 would have to be connected to a source of voltage which 

21 then would flow into the animal or into the ground or   

22 the animal would have to have a source of voltage that  

23 is charging it such that when it touches the water,     

24 which is presumably at ground, then the current flows   

25 the other way.  And those are the details that are very 
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1 important.                                              

2      Q.    And in circumstances that you talked about,  

3 about cows coming in to shocks, one of them is the      

4 electrified fence, correct?                             

5      A.    Yes.                                         

6      Q.    And you would agree that the electrified     

7 fence is a deterrent to the animals' behavior, correct? 

8 Once the cow is shocked from the fence, it's not likely 

9 to go into the fence again, correct?                    

10      A.    Probably, although I know -- if that were    

11 universally true, then you could turn the electric      

12 fence off after one -- after a little bit of training   

13 and so on; but I believe they remain energized.         

14      Q.    You would agree it's a deterrent of          

15 behavior?                                               

16      A.    It's a deterrent behavior.                   

17      Q.    The cow has a choice to either go into the   

18 fence and be shocked or not go into the fence and be    

19 shocked?                                                

20      A.    That's what the fence is there for.  That's  

21 why it's electrified, yes.                              

22      Q.    And in such situations that deal with stray  

23 voltage from a distribution line or a transmission      

24 line, the cow was not given a choice, whether it's      

25 going to be shocked or not?                             
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1      MR. RIPPIE:  I object to the question.  This       

2 witness has repeatedly indicated that he is aware of no 

3 such circumstance that this line can cause that         

4 behavior.  It assumes facts directly contrary to his    

5 testimony.                                              

6      MR. KALB:  I would disagree with that statement.   

7 I'll refer to the testimony on surrebuttal.  It talks   

8 about situations in which a transmission line could     

9 indeed result in a stray voltage particularly when it   

10 runs parallel with distribution lines.                  

11      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  What page?     

12      MR. KALB:  Beginning page 4 of 5.                  

13      MR. RIPPIE:  Is this surrebuttal or rebuttal?      

14      MR. KALB:  Surrebuttal, page 4 of 5.               

15      MR. RIPPIE:   He attributes the stray voltage to   

16 faulty grounding practices or on near-by distribution   

17 lines and to some extent to farm wiring, radio,         

18 television, and communication antennas.                 

19      MR. KALB:  I'm going also going to refer to the    

20 rebuttal testimony, page 27 of 27, Line 596.            

21      MR. RIPPIE:  I don't -- We could have this         

22 argument.  I simply object to the form of the question  

23 that presumes it.  If Mr. Kalb wants to ask the witness 

24 what he thinks, I'm absolutely fine with that.  I       

25 simply don't want it presumed in the question.          
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1      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Why don't you  

2 ask another question?                                   

3 BY MR. KALB:                                            

4      Q.    Mr. Valberg, isn't it true that it's         

5 possible that transmission lines running parallel and   

6 in close proximity to distribution lines can produce    

7 current onto the neutral and adjacent distribution line 

8 and can cause a voltage to appear between the neutral   

9 and the earth ground which leads to stray voltage?      

10      A.    That's indeed what I say in my direct        

11 rebuttal testimony, and that's why in my surrebuttal    

12 testimony I pointed out that nowhere did I see an       

13 explanation of how this transmission line was           

14 ultimately going to cause stray voltage that would      

15 affect a cow because that -- even though you may have   

16 some induced current on the neutral of the distribution 

17 line, that doesn't necessarily mean that that reaches   

18 the cow.                                                

19      Q.    It may or may not, correct?                  

20      A.    I guess no one has given a scenario by which 

21 it does.                                                

22      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Well, due to   

23 weather or -- bad weather or some other phenomenon, the 

24 neutral became disconnected at a place where it's       

25 supposed to go and came in contact with a body of water 
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1 or with a cow, does seem like a scenario where they     

2 might be exposed to voltage?                            

3      THE WITNESS:  Certainly there's a scenario where   

4 conductors might fall in the water and then, you know,  

5 cow might be drinking from that water.  So yes, I mean, 

6 all transmission lines, you know, ice and snow can      

7 bring them down and they can present a hazard.          

8 BY MR. KALB:                                            

9      Q.    Mr. Valberg, I was going to ask you some     

10 questions about the EMF and the national standards you  

11 testified to in your rebuttal testimony, and I'm        

12 specifically going to refer you to page 18, 19, and 20  

13 of your rebuttal testimony for this line of             

14 questioning.                                            

15      A.    Okay.                                        

16      Q.    If I understand it, there is no federal      

17 standards limiting occupation or residential exposure   

18 to 60 hertz EMF, correct?                               

19      A.    There's no federal standard, that's correct. 

20      Q.    You mentioned that these are -- the          

21 standards that do exist are public health based levels  

22 which are designated to protect the public against      

23 adverse health effects; is that correct?                

24      A.    Yes.                                         

25      Q.    What is the primary adverse health effect    
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1 from EMF exposure?                                      

2      A.    From EMF exposure, it would be               

3 neurostimulation.                                       

4      Q.    Is cancer also an adverse health effect of   

5 exposure to EMF?                                        

6      A.    Not that we know of.                         

7      Q.    Looking at page 19, there is a set of        

8 guidelines established by health and safety             

9 organizations that you cite to, correct?                

10      A.    Yes.                                         

11      Q.    And that's the American -- one of them is    

12 the American Conference of Governmental and Industrial  

13 Hygienists, correct?                                    

14      A.    Yes.  That would be an occupational one.     

15      Q.    And that lists the magnetic field in your    

16 Column B to 10,000 -- is it pronounced megagauss?       

17      A.    Milligauss.                                  

18      Q.    (Continuing.) -- milligauss, meaning that    

19 this guideline would allow exposure in this             

20 occupational or industrial hygienist standard to        

21 10,000, I can be around EMF up to 10,000 milligauss,    

22 correct?                                                

23      A.    Correct.                                     

24      Q.    And next is the International Commission on  

25 Non-Ionizing Radiation Protection, and it lists 2,000   
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1 milligauss?                                             

2      A.    Yes.                                         

3      Q.    The Institute of Electrical and Electronics  

4 Engineers, Standard C95.6 lists 9,040 milligauss; is    

5 that correct?                                           

6      A.    Correct.                                     

7      Q.    And finally, U.K. National Radiological      

8 Protection Board lists 2,000 milligauss; is that right? 

9      A.    Yes.                                         

10      Q.    And these are, more or less, like you said,  

11 health and safety organizations as well as occupational 

12 standards, correct?                                     

13      A.    Correct.                                     

14      Q.    The next table on page 20 references state   

15 transmission lines, 60 hertz EMF standards and          

16 guidelines; is that correct?                            

17      A.    Yes.                                         

18      Q.    Does Illinois have any standards relating to 

19 60 hertz EMF?                                           

20      A.    Not that I'm aware of.                       

21      Q.    And I'm going to call your attention to the  

22 column magnetic field, Column B.  Do you see that?      

23      A.    Yes.                                         

24      Q.    And it looks like there's a column titled    

25 "On R&W."  Do you see that?                             
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1      A.    Yes.                                         

2      Q.    Does that stand for "On Right-of-Way"?       

3      A.    Correct.                                     

4      Q.    And there are no figures in that column,     

5 correct?                                                

6      A.    I believe that's right.  I don't know that   

7 anyone really defines what the maximum should be on the 

8 right-of-way.                                           

9      Q.    I was curious, do you know why that would    

10 be?                                                     

11      A.    The only reason I can think of is, that they 

12 felt that the guideline at the edge of the right-of-way 

13 was the more relevant one and, consequently, they       

14 didn't really develop one for on the right-of-way.      

15 Remember, on this table, these are really, kind of,     

16 status quo guidelines, they're not really health-based. 

17      Q.    Help me understand that.  If they're not     

18 health-based, what's the relevance?                     

19      A.    I think that these agencies -- In all of     

20 these states, I mean, they could have developed --      

21 potentially they could have developed health-based      

22 standards like the other agencies.  However, they were  

23 just reacting to the idea that there was some concern   

24 and so what they, I believe, were essentially thinking  

25 was to say, We've lived with power lines for a          
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1 hundred years and we don't see any particular problem;  

2 however, there's been a suspicion raised so let's       

3 provide some guidelines that would essentially mean     

4 that new rights-of-way would not be higher in magnetic  

5 fields than those that have been existing for a long    

6 time.  And that's in a very rough and ready way what I  

7 believe is behind these guidelines, but you would have  

8 to refer to the actual documentation for each of these  

9 to see exactly what they were thinking.  I don't        

10 presume to present them in any way.                     

11      Q.    There is some figures for the column edge    

12 R&W, which I assume means edge right-of-way?            

13      A.    Yes.                                         

14      Q.    And you do agree that the megagauss listed   

15 for each of the states --                               

16      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Milligauss.    

17 BY MR. KALB:                                            

18      Q.    (Continuing.) -- milligauss -- I'm sorry --  

19 milligauss listed for each of these states is far less  

20 than the health and safety organizations on page 19?    

21      A.    Yes, they are.  And you should also remember 

22 that, as I said, these are not based on any health      

23 guideline; they're based on what exists out there.  And 

24 what you're essentially saying is that the kind of      

25 magnetic fields that presently exist on right-of-ways   
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1 are generally smaller all over the United States        

2 compared to the guidelines that would be allowable      

3 which are protective of health.                         

4      Q.    And you've done some EMF calculations for    

5 this project, correct?                                  

6      A.    Well, this project, I did not do the EMF     

7 calculations.                                           

8      Q.    If you turn to page 21 of your testimony,    

9 who provided the -- specifically I'm referring to --    

10 you were asked, Please summarize the results of the EMF 

11 calculations.  Were those calculations that ComEd       

12 provided you?                                           

13      A.    Yes.                                         

14      Q.    And so ComEd provided those to you and you   

15 opined whether there was any kind of health issues from 

16 those calculations, correct?                            

17      A.    Well, they provided me the results in a      

18 graphical form; and, basically, the values they had     

19 were quite similar to what I have seen on right-of-ways 

20 generally.  They were not out of line.  I did not in    

21 any sense verify those numbers myself, but those        

22 were -- the physics of electricity and magnetism is     

23 very well understood so that the calculation itself     

24 does not have that much ambiguity in it.                

25      Q.    I'm not suggesting that.  I was just trying  
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1 to figure out exactly where these calculations -- But   

2 this information was provided to you by ComEd, correct? 

3      A.    Correct.                                     

4      Q.    And it says, Within the right-of-way         

5 corridor, the peak field is projected to be             

6 50 milligauss, correct?                                 

7      A.    Correct.                                     

8      Q.    And the 50 milligauss is less than the       

9 highest standard shown on the edge of right-of-way for  

10 the state transmission 60 hertz EMF standards and       

11 guidelines, correct?                                    

12      A.    Correct.                                     

13      Q.    I'm almost done.                             

14            Can I call your attention to page 11 on your 

15 rebuttal testimony?  You would agree that there remains 

16 considerable inconsistencies among the epidemiology     

17 reports concerning EMF, correct?                        

18      A.    Yes.                                         

19      Q.    And then the first report that you listed    

20 here is a report called "Pooled Analysis of Magnetic    

21 Fields in Childhood Leukemia."  Do you see?             

22      A.    Yes.                                         

23      Q.    That's a 2000 report?                        

24      A.    Correct.                                     

25      Q.    It says, and you quoted it, When we pooled   
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1 nine epidemiology studies, we found a relative risk of  

2 2.0 for childhood leukemia in children with average     

3 exposures of 4 mg or greater.  Do you see that?         

4      A.    Yes.                                         

5      Q.    Okay.  What is the -- I'm going to ask you   

6 what this means, We found a relative risk of 2.0.  What 

7 does that mean?                                         

8      A.    Well, the way these studies are done is that 

9 you take a group of children that have leukemia that    

10 are referred to you by doctors or hospitals and then    

11 you take a group of children that you call control      

12 children who do not have leukemia; and in order to      

13 investigate the question of EMF, you then ask them or   

14 their parents or investigate what kind of electric      

15 appliances or distribution lines or transmission lines  

16 they had next to them.  And that's where you get this   

17 information on milligauss and so forth.  You give their 

18 residential location, either a wire code or a magnetic  

19 reading or something like that.                         

20            And what it is saying here is that if they   

21 compared the control children with the children who     

22 have leukemia, it turns out that the children with      

23 leukemia, looking back into their residential history,  

24 not knowing actually what their fields were, but using  

25 some technique to figure out what the field was, it     
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1 was -- you know, that the presence of this field was    

2 twice as likely in the leukemia children as it was in   

3 the control children.  And so that's where all of the   

4 epidemiology has come, from those kinds of studies      

5 because leukemia itself is a very rare disease.  So you 

6 can't really follow children.  You have to look at      

7 cases versus controls.                                  

8            Now, the difficulty that all of these        

9 epidemiologists have pointed out is the reason these -- 

10 that these relative risks can arise is because the way  

11 you select the case children and the control children   

12 is vastly different.  As I said, the case children are  

13 referred to you by hospitals and by doctors.  The       

14 controlled children are generally found by what's       

15 called random digit dialing where they have a program   

16 that just dials people and asks, you know, do you have  

17 a children, are you willing to take part in this study, 

18 and so forth.  And, therefore, you build up the case    

19 children.  And so the problem is that interpreting that 

20 difference as an effective EMF is really problematic.   

21      Q.    Would you agree that the projected           

22 milligauss measurements for the edge of the             

23 right-of-ways for this particular project are above     

24 4 milligauss?                                           

25      A.    Yes, that's correct.                         
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1      MR. KALB:  No further questions.                   

2      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  The EMF field  

3 is proportional to the inverse square of the distance   

4 from the object where you're measuring the field; is    

5 that right?                                             

6      THE WITNESS:  Generally speaking, that's right.    

7 For transmission lines, it's almost inverse square.     

8 For smaller things, it might be inverse cube; and then  

9 for some other single lines, it might be inversely with 

10 the radius.  But they all fall off at distance.         

11      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  And the higher 

12 the transmission line is off the ground, then the less  

13 likelihood there would be any EMF of significance to    

14 people at ground level.                                 

15      THE WITNESS:  Well, the height adds to the total   

16 distance and so the height makes -- it makes a          

17 difference in making it less when you're close.  But if 

18 you were, let's say, a mile away from the line, the     

19 fact that it's high or low doesn't make much difference 

20 in the distance.                                        

21      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  And is there   

22 any studies -- these numbers -- the industrial numbers, 

23 whatever the ambient measurements about what is safe    

24 and what isn't safe, are those -- do those concern      

25 people who are continuously in an EMF field or is it    
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1 something other than that?                              

2      THE WITNESS:  Well, the transmission line, as long 

3 as it is carrying current, I mean, it's going to        

4 produce magnetic fields.  And the currents will vary up 

5 and down, so the magnetic fields might vary up and      

6 down.  But as I say, inside your house, you also have   

7 appliances that create quite large magnetic fields; but 

8 those do turn on and off and you have the ability to    

9 turn them on and off.                                   

10      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  But my         

11 question had to do with the health standards from one   

12 of the charts that we were looking at a few minutes     

13 ago.                                                    

14      THE WITNESS:  Yes.                                 

15      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Do those       

16 measurements about what is appropriate or safe -- are   

17 those for people that are continuously in a magnetic    

18 field or is it some other measurement or standard as    

19 to -- On the bottom of the chart, there was an MRI,     

20 30 million milligauss or something.  That's a           

21 short-term thing.  But where, say, 5,000 milligauss was 

22 safe, was that somebody who works in the same           

23 industrial environment where all day long, workday they 

24 were exposed to that?                                   

25      THE WITNESS:  Very good question.  Yes, there are  
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1 continuously exposures.  For the workplace, it's        

2 40 hours a week.  For the public standards, it's 24/7.  

3 It is continuous.                                       

4      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  And is         

5 there -- Is there any evidence that the effect of       

6 exposure is cumulative?                                 

7      THE WITNESS:  No.  I think that's one of the       

8 interesting things about EMF.  It doesn't change any of 

9 your biology and so it's present there.  But then when  

10 it's gone, it's gone.  It doesn't leave any residue.    

11 It's not like ingesting a chemical where some of the    

12 chemical may remain in your body.  The EMF is this      

13 presence of a magnetic field, and it's like when you    

14 step out of the MRI, it's gone forever.                 

15      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Well, if       

16 you're in it forever as opposed to 40 hours a week, is  

17 there any evidence that the effect of being in it       

18 forever is more deleterious than some lesser finite     

19 amount of time than if you're in a magnetic field?      

20      THE WITNESS:  And the answer from what we know so  

21 far in the science is no, because as I mentioned, the   

22 primary effect of magnetic fields is if you get large   

23 enough, it's neurostimulation and so if you are at a    

24 level where the kinds of currents that those magnetic   

25 fields would not induce any neurostimulation, then they 
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1 will never introduce neurostimulation.  The currents    

2 just don't rise to the level --                         

3      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  What does      

4 neurostimulation mean?                                  

5      THE WITNESS:  It means like setting off nerves; I  

6 mean, like a reflex, like when the doctor taps your     

7 knee with a hammer, your foot jerks.  Well, you know,   

8 if you get fields really very high, you could get       

9 electrical stimulation of neuropathways.                

10      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Thank   

11 you.                                                    

12            Do you have any redirect?                    

13      MR. RIPPIE:   No, your Honors.  Thank you.         

14      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Thank you,     

15 professor.                                              

16      MR. RIPPIE:  Do you want to take a short break     

17 before the final witness?                               

18      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  It's okay with 

19 me if somebody wants it.  That's fine.  Let's try to    

20 come back in, say, five minutes.                        

21                     (A short break was taken.)          

22      MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honors, the final witness is     

23 Mr. Steven Naumann.                                     

24      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Mr. Naumann    

25 has previously been sworn, I believe.                   
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1      THE WITNESS:  Yes.                                 

2      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Proceed.       

3                     (Witness previously sworn.)         

4 WHEREUPON:                                              

5                    STEVEN T. NAUMANN,                   

6 called as a witness herein, having been first duly      

7 sworn, was examined and testified as follows:           

8                    DIRECT EXAMINATION                   

9 BY MR. RIPPIE:                                          

10      Q.    Mr. Naumann, would you please state and      

11 spell your name for the record?                         

12      A.    Steven T. Naumann, N A U M A N N.            

13      Q.    And, Mr. Naumann, do you have before you a   

14 document that has been marked Commonwealth Edison       

15 Exhibit 1.0 together with attachments thereto, 1.01 and 

16 1.02?                                                   

17      A.    Yes, I do.                                   

18      Q.    And were those documents prepared by you or  

19 under your direction and control?                       

20      A.    They were.                                   

21      Q.    Is it your intention that those documents    

22 collectively constitute your direct testimony to the    

23 Illinois Commerce Commission in this proceeding?        

24      A.    Yes.                                         

25      Q.    Do you have any additions or corrections to  
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1 make to those documents?                                

2      A.    No.                                          

3      Q.    If I were to ask you the same questions as   

4 appear on those documents today, would you give me the  

5 same answers?                                           

6      A.    I would.                                     

7      Q.    Do you have before you a document marked     

8 9.0, corrected, together with the attachment thereto,   

9 ComEd Exhibit 9.01?                                     

10      A.    Yes.                                         

11      Q.    Were those documents prepared under your     

12 direction and control?                                  

13      A.    They were.                                   

14      Q.    Is it your intention that those documents    

15 stand as your rebuttal testimony to the Commission in   

16 this docket?                                            

17      A.    Yes.                                         

18      Q.    Do you have any additions or corrections to  

19 make to those documents?                                

20      A.    No.                                          

21      Q.    If I were to ask you the same questions as   

22 appear there upon, would you give me the same answers?  

23      A.    I would.                                     

24      Q.    Do you have before you documents marked      

25 Exhibit 21 -- ComEd Exhibit 21.0, corrected, together   
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1 with ComEd Exhibits 21.01 and 21.02 and ComEd Group     

2 Exhibits 21.03 and 21.04?                               

3      A.    Yes.                                         

4      Q.    Were those documents prepared under your     

5 direction and control?                                  

6      A.    They were.                                   

7      Q.    Is it your intention that those documents    

8 collectively stand as your surrebuttal testimony to the 

9 Commission in this proceeding?                          

10      A.    Yes.                                         

11      Q.    If I were to ask you the same questions as   

12 appear in that document, would you give me the same     

13 answers today?                                          

14      A.    I would.                                     

15      Q.    And do you have any additions or             

16 corrections -- I'm sorry -- that you need to make to    

17 that document?                                          

18      A.    I don't.                                     

19      MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honor, during the examination -- 

20 cross-examination of Mr. Zuraski, Counsel for Utility   

21 Risk Management was afforded some latitude in asking    

22 the witness questions about a subject that was not      

23 addressed in his testimony.  I would like to ask        

24 Mr. Naumann two questions about that same subject       

25 matter.                                                 
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1      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  It seems       

2 reasonable on its face.                                 

3            Anybody object?                              

4      MR. SHAY:  I guess I would ask Counsel if he would 

5 mind reserving that for redirect.                       

6      MR. RIPPIE:   No.  With the understanding that I   

7 can do it then, I have no problem with that.  Thank     

8 you, Mr. Shay.                                          

9      MR. SHAY:  I guess it depends on the question.     

10      MR. RIPPIE:  I'm happy to do it whichever time.  I 

11 simply want the record to be balanced and complete.     

12      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Let's save it  

13 for your examination, Counsel.                          

14      MR. RIPPIE:  And can I -- I'd like to offer into   

15 evidence the exhibits that I identified, your Honor.    

16      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  There are no   

17 objections to the offer of exhibits, ComEd Exhibit 1    

18 with attachments, 9 with attachment, 21 with            

19 attachments will be admitted into the record.           

20      MR. RIPPIE:   The witness is available for         

21 cross-examination.                                      

22                    CROSS-EXAMINATION                    

23 BY MR. SHAY:                                            

24      Q.    Good afternoon, Mr. Naumann.                 

25      A.    Good afternoon.                              
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1      Q.    Is your employer Exelon Business Services    

2 Company?                                                

3      A.    Yes.                                         

4      Q.    Is that a direct subsidiary of Exelon        

5 Corporation?                                            

6      A.    It's a subsidiary of Exelon Corporation.  I  

7 don't know the full corporate structure, whether        

8 there's an intermediate company between the two.        

9      Q.    Okay.  And in your position, do you report   

10 to someone name Ruth Ann Gillis?                        

11      A.    No.                                          

12      Q.    To whom do you report?                       

13      A.    Ms. Kathleen Barron, B A R R O N, and        

14 there's an accent bar over the O.                       

15      Q.    How long have you reported to Ms. -- Is      

16 it -- I'm sorry.                                        

17      A.    Barron.                                      

18      Q.    How long have you reported to her?           

19      A.    Since March 2013.                            

20      Q.    And to whom does she report?                 

21      A.    She reports to Joe Dominguez, common         

22 spelling of Dominguez.                                  

23      Q.    Does Mr. Dominguez then report to            

24 Christopher Crane?                                      

25      A.    No.                                          
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1      Q.    There's someone else in between?             

2      A.    Yes.  Someone else in between --             

3      Q.    Who is that?                                 

4      A.    Bill von Hoene, V O N, H O E N E, with a     

5 capital H.                                              

6      Q.    And does he report to Mr. Crane?             

7      A.    Mr. von Hoene reports to Mr. Crane.          

8      Q.    Okay.  Is Mr. Crane the president and CEO of 

9 Exelon Corporation?                                     

10      A.    Yes.                                         

11      Q.    Is he also a chairman of Commonwealth        

12 Edison?                                                 

13      A.    I believe so.                                

14      MR. SHAY:  Counsel, will you stipulate to that.    

15      MR. RIPPIE:   He is the non-executive chairman of  

16 the board of Commonwealth Edison.                       

17      MR. SHAY:  Thank you.                              

18 BY MR. SHAY:                                            

19      Q.    Commonwealth Edison is a subsidiary of       

20 Exelon Corporation?                                     

21      A.    Yeah.                                        

22      Q.    Either directly or indirectly?               

23      A.    Yes.                                         

24      Q.    Are there other public utility companies     

25 that are subsidiaries of Exelon Corporation?            
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1      A.    Yes.                                         

2      Q.    Is Baltimore Gas and Electric one of them?   

3      A.    Baltimore Gas and Electric is one of them.   

4 PECO Energy is another one.                             

5      Q.    Is that headquartered in Philadelphia?       

6      A.    PECO is headquartered in Philadelphia, yes.  

7      Q.    And Constellation, is that another           

8 subsidiary of Exelon?                                   

9      A.    Yes.                                         

10      Q.    And Exelon Generation is another subsidiary? 

11      A.    Again, I believe it's a direct subsidiary.   

12 I believe it is -- I mean, it is a subsidiary.          

13      Q.    It's in the chain?                           

14      A.    In the chain with Constellation, not in the  

15 chain with Commonwealth Edison.                         

16      Q.    Okay.  It's a sister company of ComEd; is    

17 that fair?                                              

18      A.    Distant sister.                              

19      Q.    Okay.                                        

20      A.    I've forgotten my decedents' estates; but by 

21 the time you get up there, it's probably a third        

22 cousin.                                                 

23      Q.    Okay.                                        

24      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Second sister, 

25 twice removed.                                          
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1      THE WITNESS:  Something, something like that.      

2 BY THE WITNESS:                                         

3      A.    Sister to me would imply they have the same  

4 parent, and they do not have the same direct parent.    

5      Q.    I understand.  Okay.  Thank you.             

6            In your position, is it true that you        

7 provide advice and guidance on transmission system      

8 planning design and operation to all of the             

9 Commonwealth Edison transmission affiliated companies,  

10 obviously all of the -- correct that -- all of the      

11 Exelon public utility companies that own transmissions? 

12      A.    I provide advice on numerous issues          

13 involving transmission reliability.                     

14      Q.    Okay.                                        

15      A.    I don't do planning.  I'm at a much higher   

16 level than that, although I did for 20 years.           

17      Q.    Okay.  I'm going to ask you to refer to your 

18 testimony, your direct testimony, page 4, if you don't  

19 mind.  The last paragraph on that page starting at      

20 Line 81, the second sentence starting on Line 82, if I  

21 may read that:  On top of reducing congestion-related   

22 costs, the project opens a gateway that allows greater  

23 amounts of low cost and renewable energy resources,     

24 beginning paren, wind, comma, nuclear, end paren, to    

25 each ComEd delivery customers, whether they purchase    
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1 power and energy from ComEd or a retail electric        

2 supplier.  Did I read that correctly?                   

3      A.    Yes.                                         

4      Q.    Okay.  And nuclear -- when you say nuclear   

5 there, to what nuclear energy resources were you        

6 referring?                                              

7      A.    The nuclear energy resources that are west   

8 of the constraint, which is somewhere to the west of    

9 Wayne.                                                  

10      Q.    Okay.  Does that include Exelon Generation   

11 Byron Nuclear Station?                                  

12      A.    It would.                                    

13      Q.    And the Quad Cities Station?                 

14      A.    It would.  And it would also include         

15 resources in Iowa, I believe the (inaudible).           

16      Q.    I'm sorry?                                   

17      A.    Duane Arnold, for example, the nuclear wind  

18 resources in Iowa.                                      

19      Q.    So the need for this project was recognized  

20 by PJM in its regional planning process; is that        

21 correct?                                                

22      A.    That's correct.                              

23      Q.    How was the project cost considered by PJM   

24 in its process of determining this project was          

25 necessary?                                              
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1      A.    I think Mr. McGlynn generally dealt with it, 

2 but I'd be glad to give you more details.  The RTEP is  

3 generally -- I'm going to describe -- a two-step        

4 process -- or three-step.  The first is to identify the 

5 need.  The need -- In this case, the need was the       

6 infeasibility, the current and ten-year infeasibility   

7 of Stage 1 ARRs that would be --                        

8      MR. SHAY:  If I may, your Honors, I think he's     

9 going beyond the scope of my question; but I'm not      

10 going to object because I actually do want to know.     

11 BY MR. SHAY:                                            

12      Q.    You may proceed.                             

13      A.    I just want to --                            

14      MR. RIPPIE:  I don't think he is, but I'm happy to 

15 let him proceed, too.                                   

16      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Go ahead, sir. 

17 Continue with your response.                            

18 BY THE WITNESS:                                         

19      A.    The ARR are all capitalized.                 

20            So after the need is determined, PJM then    

21 looks for a solution.  As was testified by a number of  

22 people, this was a rather robust process that went over 

23 a period of a number of months where ComEd and other    

24 parties proposed solutions to the problem.  These were  

25 held through what was referred to earlier as the TEAC,  
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1 T E A C, all capitalized, meetings which were opened to 

2 all members, in fact, the public.  As I recall, for     

3 example, members of ICC Staff participated in them      

4 through phone calls where the solutions were laid out   

5 and the analysis to those potential solutions was laid  

6 out.                                                    

7            After this multi-month process of going      

8 through numerous solutions which -- proposals -- I'm    

9 sorry -- proposed solutions which were listed in        

10 Mr. McGlynn's testimony, PJM found that the only        

11 solution that solved the need and did not create        

12 additional reliability problems was Grand Prairie       

13 Gateway.  As part of that evaluation prior to the final 

14 TEAC meeting, PJM engaged the services of a consultant  

15 called URS.  URS did a desk estimate to do an apples to 

16 apples comparison between the other projects, the other 

17 proposals.  And that's where the genesis of the         

18 109.6 million -- that was a desk estimate.  It did not  

19 take into account the specifics of the project.  And if 

20 you'd like, I could go into further detail, although it 

21 was discussed in response to Data Request RJZ2.12 about 

22 some of the short -- I don't want to say --             

23 short-comings because, again, it was a desk estimate,   

24 but some of the issues that that desk estimate did not  

25 deal with -- or was unable to deal with for any of the  
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1 problems.  We've answered that in the data requests.    

2 Once that was done, the number was incorporated into    

3 the final RTEP report given to the board of directors.  

4      Q.    If I may -- I'm sorry -- I want to make sure 

5 I understood something you said earlier.  That desk     

6 estimate, you gave a dollar figure?                     

7      A.    109.6, I believe that number has been batted 

8 around with Mr. McGlynn and in an attempt to bat it     

9 around with Mr. Zuraski.                                

10      Q.    Thank you.  Proceed.                         

11      A.    Okay.  Subsequent to the board approval,     

12 ComEd had started more detailed engineering and         

13 provided that feedback to PJM.  That detailed           

14 engineering took into account the things that -- many   

15 things that URS report could not, specific land values; 

16 the fact that we use union labor in Illinois, and the   

17 URS estimate tossed out the construction costs for      

18 areas like New York and California, but we use union    

19 labor here; the fact that -- and I don't have the exact 

20 wording right, but the practice, and I think it's       

21 through an agreement with the Illinois Agriculture      

22 Agency, whatever it's called, is to attempt to use      

23 free-standing poles and not lattice towers and the      

24 attendant cost in constructing them, which would be     

25 required with any project, current costs, materials,    
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1 and certain other costs; and the fact that as a prudent 

2 utility planning for the future, as ComEd has done for  

3 other projects, we would build these in a more          

4 resilient manner to be able to accept the double and    

5 triple circuits for the future rather than having to    

6 essentially go in and tear those down.                  

7            All of those things then contributed to the  

8 new estimate, the -- I'll use the 251, which is the     

9 direct cost -- 251 million.  I'm sorry.  That was       

10 discussed with PJM in a meeting I personally attended,  

11 and that was fine with PJM.  PJM then had a -- I        

12 believe it was October of last year -- looked at the    

13 project again and said, once again, this was the        

14 solution.  They knew all that information at that time. 

15 And, obviously, we've been working on that project and  

16 doing the engineering that's necessary.  So it's a much 

17 more complex process than just a single number.         

18      Q.    That URS consulting work that you mentioned, 

19 does that appear anywhere in Commonwealth Edison's      

20 direct case proceeding?                                 

21      A.    I don't believe it does.  I don't believe we 

22 believed it to be relevant.                             

23      Q.    You didn't --                                

24      A.    I need to check Mr. McGlynn's Exhibit 306.   

25 He may have -- Mr. McGlynn may have referred to it.  It 
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1 may be referred to in that report.  I don't know.  I    

2 don't believe there's a reference to URS in Exhibit     

3 No. 306, if that's the where the number comes from.     

4 The report is publicly posted on the PJM web site.      

5 And, again, I believe it was referenced in response to  

6 Staff Data Request RJZ2.12.                             

7      Q.    2.1?                                         

8      A.    Yes, sir.                                    

9      Q.    But we don't have that URS Consulting report 

10 in front of us, do we?                                  

11      A.    No.  I was explaining the process, Mr. Shay. 

12 I was not attempting to introduce it into the record.   

13      Q.    And today for the first time, we are hearing 

14 about your discussion with the PJM Board after the      

15 251-million-dollar project -- revised project cost was  

16 arrived at; and you're saying that the Board said it    

17 was fine?                                               

18      A.    If you'd allow me to correct you, that is    

19 not what I said.                                        

20      Q.    Not the Board.  Okay.  Please --             

21      A.    Discussions with the Board, the independent  

22 board -- The discussions with the -- You cannot have    

23 direct discussions, direct private discussions with the 

24 Independent Board.  All discussions must be either      

25 public or they are noticed and posted.  This was        
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1 discussion with PJM staff to go over the number of the  

2 issues as to siting and the discussion about building   

3 these in a more resilient manner.  We would, again,     

4 discuss those issues with PJM; and the senior staff was 

5 supportive of doing that for many of the reasons that I 

6 discussed, about building for the future.  They've      

7 had -- There have been cases mostly out East where they 

8 have run into severe congestion where they've had to    

9 take down lines and rebuild lines.  And that's          

10 something you want to try to avoid.  It's good utility  

11 practice.                                               

12      Q.    One of the models, the PJM models we've      

13 heard about were run -- isn't it true that they were    

14 run with the 109.6-million-dollar estimate?             

15      A.    I don't know what models you're referring    

16 to.                                                     

17      Q.    These models that your witnesses have        

18 referred to, Mr. Naumann.  I don't know either.  I was  

19 hoping you would.                                       

20      A.    The models -- As far as I know, the models   

21 that the witnesses have discussed -- the PJM models,    

22 the witnesses have discussed in proceedings, such by    

23 Mr. McGlynn generally, have been the models to          

24 determine the infeasibility of the ten-year Stage 1     

25 ARR -- ARRs.  As far as I know, those are the only --   
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1 I'm sorry -- the second models they would have run was  

2 looking at the proposed solutions then to see if they   

3 created any reliability problems.  And as I said, a     

4 number of the other proposals created additional        

5 reliability problems that -- and additional further     

6 problems that either could not be solved or would have  

7 created a significant operability problems like         

8 installing a non-standard sized transformer or proposal 

9 to install a non-standard sized transformer on the      

10 system which recent events have proven why that's not a 

11 good idea.                                              

12      Q.    So tell us again what category, if this is   

13 the right word, and you'll have to bear with me because 

14 I probably won't describe it correctly, but hopefully   

15 you'll understand what I mean.  Within the different    

16 categories of projects that PJM studies and approves    

17 through its RTEP process, is it true there are several  

18 different categories of project -- different categories 

19 in terms of the types of projects?                      

20      A.    Yes.  I believe Mr. McGlynn discussed them,  

21 and I believe I also discussed them back when we were   

22 in Springfield, but I'm glad to go over them again.     

23      Q.    I won't ask you to do that.  But which       

24 category does this project fall into?                   

25      A.    This project is justified based on Stage 1A  
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1 ARR infeasibility as required in PJM operating          

2 agreement.                                              

3      Q.    Is that the first such project proposed in   

4 this state by any authority?                            

5      A.    Yes.                                         

6      Q.    Do either of Baltimore Gas and Electric or   

7 PECO Energy, do they have a project that falls into     

8 that category?                                          

9      A.    I'm sorry.  Have they?                       

10      Q.    Yes, that came out of the RTEP process, or   

11 is this the first one for the Exelon family of utility  

12 companies?                                              

13      A.    This is the first one for the Exelon family  

14 of companies.  And I'll go further.  I'll refer to      

15 Baltimore even prior to the merger in March of 2013.    

16      Q.    Okay.  So this is a fairly new -- This is a  

17 fairly new subject, so to speak; is that fair to say?   

18      A.    Well, the PJM tariff provisions, again       

19 following the passage of EPAct 2005, the first          

20 rule-making and the PJM tariff provisions go back to    

21 2006.  So if 2006 is recent, then it's recent.          

22      MR. RIPPIE:  Could you please give the court       

23 reporter the abbreviation?                              

24      THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.                           

25      MR. SHAY:  Energy Policy Act.                      
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1      THE WITNESS:  Capital E, capital P, capital A,     

2 small C small T.  And I'm sorry for the acronyms.  I'll 

3 try to be more careful.                                 

4 BY MR. SHAY:                                            

5      Q.    Mr. Naumann, of the factors that you listed  

6 that boosted the cost of this project from its original 

7 109.6 million --                                        

8      MR. RIPPIE:   I object to the characterization.    

9 The witness has, as prior witnesses have, explained     

10 that it is not a price boost, that the estimates are of 

11 different things.  But again, I'm not objecting to your 

12 question, only to the characterization.                 

13      MR. SHAY:  Okay.  I'll call it an increase; that's 

14 fine.                                                   

15 BY THE WITNESS:                                         

16      A.    I don't -- Again --                          

17      Q.    There's no question pending.                 

18      A.    Okay.                                        

19      Q.    Of that approximately $241 million -- I'm    

20 sorry -- $151 million -- Strike that.                   

21            Of the approximately 141-million-dollar      

22 increase, I believe Mr. McGlynn said -- and you were    

23 here, so you can correct me if I'm wrong -- that over   

24 $70 million of that was attributable to substituting    

25 multi-circuit structures for single circuit structures; 
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1 is that correct?                                        

2      A.    I don't recall Mr. McGlynn providing --      

3      Q.    I have it in my notes, so maybe I took it    

4 wrong.                                                  

5      A.    I don't recall --                            

6      Q.    Maybe --                                     

7      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Counsel, let   

8 him finish talking before you start to talk.  The court 

9 reporter can't take you down at once.                   

10      MR. SHAY:  I apologize.                            

11 BY THE WITNESS:                                         

12      A.    I can't recall Mr. McGlynn giving such an    

13 estimate.                                               

14      Q.    I don't think it was in his prepared         

15 testimony, if that helps.                               

16      A.    I'm sorry?                                   

17      Q.    I don't remember his prepared testimony.  It 

18 might have been Mr. Kaup's.                             

19      A.    Mr. Kaup --                                  

20      Q.    If you know, I mean, go ahead.               

21      A.    I'm looking in my rebuttal testimony.  It    

22 may be in Mr. Kaup where we performed a benefit cost    

23 analysis using a bare bones single circuit, and I'm --  

24 I just want to make sure that I have the --             

25      THE WITNESS:  Do we have -- I need to see 16.0     
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1 because that's where I took the number from, and I      

2 don't have 16.0 in front of me.  I thought it may have  

3 been on the order of --                                 

4      MR. RIPPIE:  We'll get you a copy.                 

5 BY THE WITNESS:                                         

6      A.    In the interest of being accurate, I would   

7 not like to guess.                                      

8      Q.    You'd like to consult.                       

9      A.    Yes, just for that.                          

10      MR. RIPPIE:  If I might, your Honors, just note    

11 that I'm showing Mr. Naumann an electronic copy of      

12 ComEd Exhibit 16.0.                                     

13 BY THE WITNESS:                                         

14      A.    The reference would be that Mr. Kaup's 16.0, 

15 Line 61, the estimate would be 155 million, bare bones  

16 single circuit with all the disadvantages that          

17 Mr. Leeming discussed in his rebuttal testimony.        

18      Q.    155 million?                                 

19      A.    I'm sorry.  The 155 -- I don't have the      

20 exact number.  Then there's the -- I think it was       

21 somewhere in the order of 180 when you include the      

22 substation work.  So I -- We can -- It's in my -- It    

23 was provided in my work papers to my rebuttal.  I       

24 believe it's either 182 or 184 million full, all that   

25 including the work to the substations.                  
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1      Q.    So is that true, then, if the math works,    

2 that around $70 million of the total cost of the        

3 project was due to the change in the power structures   

4 to accommodate additional circuits?                     

5      A.    If you go to Mr. Kaup's testimony, again     

6 16.0, Line 66, Mr. Kaup testified 71 million.           

7      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.                            

8            PJM hasn't authorized or even started to     

9 process or consider any additional circuits, have they? 

10      A.    I assume you mean any additional circuits    

11 with reference to the double ready and triple ready.    

12 If that's the question, correct.                        

13      Q.    Correct.  Those are several years out in the 

14 future; is that true?                                   

15      A.    That's correct.  Mr. Leeming discussed that  

16 in detail.                                              

17      Q.    Okay.  With the cost of this project,        

18 whatever it ends up being in the end, the capitalized   

19 cost, would that go into ComEd's rate base?             

20      A.    Yes.                                         

21      Q.    And so ComEd would get to recover as a       

22 result its operating and maintenance costs and a return 

23 on the capital that's represented by that rate base; is 

24 that correct?                                           

25      A.    I think Mr. Leeming has testified that his   
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1 belief is that, in fact, there would be no incremental  

2 operating and maintenance costs of the line because of  

3 the difficulties we have now in getting outages of the  

4 two remaining lines and having to work continuously and 

5 over time and things like that.  But putting aside      

6 that, the cost of the project will go into the rate     

7 base and ComEd will recover the cost of and the cost on 

8 it -- a return of the cost of the project and a return  

9 on the equity portion of the project.                   

10      Q.    Is that equity return, Mr. Zuraski, if you   

11 remember from this morning, testified that that was     

12 11.5 percent; is that consistent with your              

13 understanding?                                          

14      A.    The return on the equity portion is          

15 presently 11.5 percent, yes.                            

16      Q.    Is it fair to say, Mr. Naumann, that without 

17 this infeasibility issue that we talked about so much,  

18 that this project would not meet the public convenience 

19 and necessity standard under 8-406.1 under the Public   

20 Utilities Act?                                          

21      A.    I don't know whether -- had it not been      

22 proved in this manner, the project -- we might have     

23 tried -- might have asked PJM, knowing what we know     

24 now, to approve it for the other reasons that we have   

25 now shown.  But if you're asking about the application  
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1 itself, it is being justified, it is being requested    

2 for the Stage 1A ARRs.  However, subsequent analysis    

3 has shown savings of hundreds of millions of dollars to 

4 ComEd delivery customers which I went through in detail 

5 in my surrebuttal testimony.                            

6      Q.    They went through the PJM RTEP process, did  

7 it not, as a project to cure the infeasibility issue?   

8      A.    It did.                                      

9      Q.    Would you say, Mr. Naumann, that given       

10 that the next 501 projects, that it would utilize       

11 circuits along the same -- using the same structures as 

12 this project was built for being so far out in the      

13 future, is there a possibility that conditions can      

14 change so that those future circuits might not be       

15 necessary?                                              

16      A.    I'd like to clarify that a little.           

17 Mr. Leeming made very clear that we believed that the   

18 next set of circuits would be needed for reliability    

19 purposes of the Chicago area around 2024.  If you want  

20 to call that far out in transmission world, ten years   

21 is not all that far out.  But if those circuits were    

22 not needed, that possibility exists.  However, as       

23 Mr. Leeming explained, we're seeing -- his group does   

24 look out that far and is seeing the need for such       

25 circuits based on multiple scenarios, again to maintain 
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1 the reliability of the northwest area of the city of    

2 Chicago.                                                

3      Q.    Mr. Naumann, would you agree that in order   

4 for the Commission to grant Commonwealth Edison all the 

5 approvals it needs from this agency, that the           

6 Commission is going to have to find that the project    

7 is, quote/unquote, necessary?                           

8      A.    Well, I'd rather deal with the words of the  

9 statute rather than characterize because it's a legal   

10 conclusion.  When dealing with legal terms, I've        

11 learned that words -- specific words have meaning       

12 and --                                                  

13      Q.    Absolutely.  If it helps, I'm referencing    

14 Section 8-503 for that term.                            

15      MR. RIPPIE:  Especially given the hour, if there's 

16 something to this other than asking the witness for an  

17 opinion as to what the meaning of Section 8-406.1 is,   

18 I'm fine.  But if it's simply asking him to read or     

19 interpret the statute, I object to the question.        

20      MR. SHAY:  Well, he's testified as to what he      

21 understands the standard is for approval, citing        

22 provisions of the Act.  So I'm just asking him under    

23 one of those provisions, 8-503, is it his understanding 

24 that the Commission must find if the project is         

25 necessary.                                              
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1      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Why don't you  

2 just answer the question?                               

3      MR. RIPPIE:   Sure.                                

4 BY THE WITNESS:                                         

5      A.    I believe the Commission must find it to be  

6 necessary as the Commission defines the word necessary. 

7 And I believe Mr. Zuraski in his testimony and his data 

8 requests expounded on that, at least from his views in  

9 the comments considerably.  I believe the project is    

10 necessary under any reasonable interpretation.          

11      Q.    Understood.  Thank you.                      

12            Switching gears slightly to a routing        

13 question, I know you're not a routing witness, but you  

14 have some routing related testimony in your testimony   

15 and you've sat through these hearings so you know the   

16 routing issues that have arisen, correct?               

17      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Just ask the   

18 question.                                               

19 BY MR. SHAY:                                            

20      Q.    If you know, Mr. Naumann, does Commonwealth  

21 Edison have imminent domain authority with respect to   

22 railroad rights-of-way, specifically not just simple    

23 crossings, but more when you're seeking to parallel the 

24 railroad right-of-way with your transmission lines?     

25      A.    I do not know.                               
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1      Q.    You do not know?                             

2      A.    I do not know.                               

3      Q.    What about the Illinois Toll Highway         

4 Authority?                                              

5      A.    I do not know the limits of imminent domain  

6 authority.                                              

7      MR. SHAY:  Okay.  I don't have any further         

8 questions, your Honors.                                 

9            Mr. Naumann, I want the apologize for        

10 interrupting you several times.  I shouldn't have done  

11 that, and the Judge was correct in pointing out to me.  

12 Again, I'm sorry.                                       

13      THE WITNESS:  It's late in the day and we've been  

14 here a long time, so where all friends here.            

15      MR. RIPPIE:  We have nothing, and I, unless your   

16 Honors have an affirmative interest in it, don't see    

17 the need to ask the additional questions I was going    

18 to.  Mr. Naumann has explained the process.             

19      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Thank   

20 you, Mr. Naumann.                                       

21      THE WITNESS:  Thank you, your Honors.              

22      MR. RIPPIE:   And that includes the presentation   

23 of the Company's case with the exception of a           

24 stipulation, I believe, we have with Staff with respect 

25 to certain data request responses.                      
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1      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  And we'll get  

2 that taken care of shortly.                             

3            I think we've already talked about           

4 affidavits supporting admission of testimony.  What     

5 else do we need to talk about?  We'll hold the record   

6 open until April 23rd for the people to file            

7 affidavits.  We talked about the briefing schedule and  

8 position statements.                                    

9      MR. BERNET:  That's all, and your scheduling       

10 order.                                                  

11      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Right.         

12      MR. BERNET:  We'd like to put in those data        

13 requests, though, the stipulated data requests.         

14      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  The one that   

15 was referring --                                        

16      MR. BERNET:  The ones he was referring to.         

17      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Do you want to 

18 now?                                                    

19      MR. BERNET:  Yes, please.                          

20      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Go      

21 ahead.                                                  

22      MR. BERNET:  Thank you, your Honor.                

23            Previously identified as ComEd Group         

24 Cross-Examination Exhibit 4 which is a series of data   

25 request responses that ComEd submitted to the Illinois  
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1 Commerce Commission Staff, and I'll just read the       

2 numbers off, Staff has stipulated to the admission of   

3 these documents.  It's ComEd to all Data Request        

4 No. 1.07; ComEd to all Data Request 1.09; ComEd to all  

5 Data Request 1.12; ComEd to Staff Data Request 2.02;    

6 ComEd to Staff Data Request 2.07; ComEd to Staff 2.14;  

7 ComEd to Staff 2.15; ComEd to Staff 2.18; ComEd to      

8 Staff 2.20; ComEd to Staff 3.02, corrected; ComEd to    

9 Staff 3.10; ComEd to Staff 3.12; ComEd to Staff 6.01;   

10 ComEd to Staff 6.02; and ComEd to Staff 6.03.           

11      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Objections?    

12      MS. ERICSON:  No objection from Staff.             

13      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  The     

14 data responses as articulated by Counsel will be        

15 admitted into the record.                               

16      MR. BERNET:  Thank you, your Honor.                

17      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Anything else  

18 we need to do today?                                    

19      MS. SWAN:  Your Honor, just a question about the   

20 transcripts, has anyone requested expedited?            

21      MR. BERNET:  We did.                               

22      MR. RIPPIE:  Thank you.                            

23            Yes, your Honors, we should have called that 

24 to everyone's attention.  We've had some private        

25 conversations with other parties.  We've requested      
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1 second business day transcripts and are in the process  

2 of arranging with the court reporters to have those     

3 transcripts available to all of -- I'll define in a     

4 second -- the active parties to the case simultaneously 

5 or as close as we can e-mail them simultaneously as the 

6 company gets them.  By active parties, we mean parties  

7 that have participated in the hearing.                  

8      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.          

9      MR. PHILLIPS:  Before we close the record,         

10 Mr. Rippie and I discussed something this morning and   

11 I'm wondering if we could just have a moment off the    

12 record to follow up with that.                          

13      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Off the        

14 record.                                                 

15                     (Discussion off the record.)        

16      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  Anything       

17 further?                                                

18      MR. RIPPIE:   Nothing further, your Honors.        

19      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.     

20 The data requests will be filed -- responses to data    

21 responses will be filed in e-Docket, correct?           

22      MR. BERNET:  That most recent cross exhibit, yes.  

23      MR. RIPPIE:  I believe, your Honor, we'll file     

24 both group cross exhibit -- we'll file Cross Exhibits   

25 1, 2, and 4 on e-Docket; 3 was not moved into evidence. 
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1      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.     

2 Mr. Shay, you discussed with Mr. Zuraski some responses 

3 to data requests and you read the questions -- and the  

4 questions and answers got in the record.  I presume you 

5 don't want to put those in the record; is that correct? 

6      MR. PHILLIPS:  That's correct, your Honor.         

7      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.     

8 Then with the -- Except for the late filed exhibits     

9 that we talked about, this matter will be marked heard  

10 and taken.  Thank you.                                  

11                     (Which were all the proceedings had 

12                      in the above-entitled cause.)      
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1 STATE OF ILLINOIS  )                                    
                   )  SS.                               

2 COUNTY OF COOK     )                                    

3
          Lisa M. Walas, being first duly sworn, on     

4
oath says that she is a Certified Shorthand Reporter    

5
doing business in the City of Chicago, County of Cook   

6
and the State of Illinois;                              

7
          That she reported in shorthand the            

8
proceedings had at the foregoing hearing;               

9
          And that the foregoing is a true and correct  

10
transcript of her shorthand notes so taken as aforesaid 

11
and contains all the proceedings had at the said        

12
hearing.                                                

13

14
                         ____________________________   

15                          LISA M. WALAS, CSR             

16                                                         
CSR No. 084-3787                                        

17                                                         
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO                                 

18 before me this 21st day of                              
April, A.D., 2014.                                      

19                                                         

20 _______________________                                 
    NOTARY PUBLIC                                       

21

22

23

24

25


